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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), and 

Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following agreement: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count Information which charges 

the defendant as follows. Count I charges that the defendant attempted to intentionally harass 

another person, that is, S.K., in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade S.K. from attending or 

testifying in an official proceeding, that is a federal grand jury appearance in the Southern 

District of Florida, in violation of Title 18, U.S.C., § 1512(d)(1). Count 2 charges that the 

defendant attempted to intentionally harass another person, that is, N.M., in an attempt to delay, 

prevent, and dissuade N.M. from attending or testifying in an official proceeding, that is a federal 

grand jury appearance in the Southern District of Florida, in violation of Title 18, U.S.C. 

1512(d)(1). 

2. The defendant agrees and understands that the above charges involve the United 

States Attorney's Office's and the Federal Bureau of Investigation's own investigation in his 

conduct, and the conduct of others, between in and around early 2001 through in and around 

EFTA00176611



September 2007 involving conspiring with others known and unknown to commit an offense 

against the United States, in violation of Title 18, U.S.C., §§ 2422(b) and 2423(b); all in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, §§ 371 and 18 U.S.C. 2423(e); and violating Title 18, 

U.S.C., §§ 2422(b); 2423(b) and (f); and Title 18, U.S.C., §§ 1591(a)(1) and (2). This agreement 

resolves the federal criminal liability of the defendant and any co-conspirators in the Southern 

District of Florida growing out of any criminal conduct by those persons known to the United 

States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida as of the date of this plea agreement, 

including but not limited to the above-described scheme. 

3. The United States agrees that, upon entry of the defendant's guilty plea, its Grand 

Jury investigation will be suspended, and all pending Grand Jury subpoenas will be held in 

abeyance unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement, as explained in 

paragraph 20, infra. The defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending motion to intervene 

and to quash certain grand jury subpoenas. The defendant further agrees that the current 

custodian of certain computer equipment shall maintain that evidence inviolate until all of the 

terms of this agreement have been satisfied. Provided that the defendant does not breach this 

agreement, the Government agrees that it will not seek to initiate federal investigation or 

prosecution for conduct subject to this agreement. 

4. Epstein shall enter his guilty plea to the federal Information no later than 

November 5, 2007. Epstein shall consent to the plea being entered and sentence imposed by a 

United States magistrate judge pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3401(a). Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 

§ 3401(c), Epstein and the Government agree to recommend to the Magistrate-Judge that the 

Pre-Sentence Investigation Report not be requested in which case Epstein and the Government 

agree that the sentence shall be imposed on the date of plea, that Epstein be released on bail, that 
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travel shall not be restricted during the period of bail and that Epstein be permitted to self-report 

to the facility designated by the United States Bureau of Prisons to commence his sentence 75 

days after sentencing. If the Court requires a Pre-Sentence Investigation Report, Epstein shall be 

sentenced on a later date but the parties agree to the bail, travel and self-report conditions as 

outlined in this paragraph. 

5. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts I 

and 2 of the Information, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment of 

up to one (1) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of one (1 ) 

year. In addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may impose a fine 

of up to $100,000 as to each count. 

6. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any 

sentence imposed under paragraph 3 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount of 

$50 will be imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of sentencing. 

7. The parties agree, that pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c)(1)(c), the defendant 

receive a sentence of eighteen (18) months' imprisonment, to be followed by one (1) year of 

supervised release; and a fine of $200,000. The parties' further agree that the Court impose one 

year of home confinement as a special condition of supervised release. The parties further agree 

that there should is no restitution for the offenses charged. 

8. The parties agree that the United States Sentencing Guidelines as applied would 

result in a sentencing range of 10-16 months, a range resulting from the application of U.S.S.G. 

2J1.2 base offense level of 14, with no enhancement or cross-reference, reduced by two levels 

for acceptance of responsibility. The parties further agree to a 2-month upward departure from 

the guidelines. 
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9. The defendant agrees to fund a Trust set up in concert with the Government and 

under the supervision of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County. The defendant 

agrees that a Trustee will be appointed by the Circuit Court and that funds from the Trust will be 

available to be disbursed at the Trustee's discretion to an agreed list of persons who seek 

reimbursement and make a good faith showing to the Trustee that they suffered injury as a result 

of the conduct of the defendant. The defendant waives his right to contest liability or damages 

up to an amount agreed to by the parties for any settlements entered into by the Trustee. The 

defendant's waiver is not to be construed as an admission of civil or criminal liability in regards 

to any of those who seek compensation from the Trust. The parties further agree that any person 

receiving funds from the Trust will be required to waive their right to separately pursue damages 

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255. 

10. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that he must undertake 

certain actions with the State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm 

Beach County (hereinafter, "State Attorney's Office") in order to satisfy the United States' 

federal interest in the investigation and prosecution of his offenses, in accordance with the 

Justice Department's Petite Policy. The defendant understands and acknowledges that the 

United States Attorney has no authority to require the State Attorney's Office to abide by any 

terms of this Agreement. The defendant understands that it is his obligation to undertake 

discussion with the State Attorney's Office to ensure compliance with these procedures. 

11. In addition to entering a guilty plea in the instant case, the defendant and the Palm 

Beach County State Attorney's Office have agreed that the defendant will plead guilty to one (I) 

count of solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Fl. Stat. § 796.07 under the Indictment as 

currently pending against him (Case No. 2006-cf-009495AXXXMB). The defendant further 
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agrees to plead guilty to an Information filed by the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office 

charging one (I) count of a violation of the following Florida Statute: Coercing a person to 

become a prostitute in violation of Fl. Stat. § 796.04. The terms of the plea are that the 

defendant will be adjudicated guilty and be placed on sixty (60) months' probation to run 

concurrently with the federal sentence referenced above. The defendant will enter his plea to the 

indictment at least 7 days before he begins his federal sentence but not prior to the defendants 

sentencing before a federal judge. The defendant will enter his successive plea to the 

Information after the conclusion of his federal sentence and supervised release. 

12. The defendant agrees to waive all challenges to the Information filed by the State 

Attorney's Office and to waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in the state court. 

13. The defendant agrees to provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all 

proposed agreements with the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office prior to entering into 

those agreements. 

14. The defendant agrees that the timely completion of these actions is material to this 

agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one of these 

conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to investigate and 

prosecute the defendant for any and all federal offenses as defined on page 2, supra. 

15. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and, if a Presentence 

Report is ordered by the Magistrate-Judge despite the joint agreement of the parties that no such 

report shall be requested, the probation office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, 

including all relevant information concerning the offenses committed as well as concerning the 

defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court and 

the Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express terms 
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of any agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this Office further 

reserves the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity of punishment. 

The Government will not oppose the defendant's request that the Magistrate-Judge recommend 

to the Bureau of Prisons that the sentence be served at a federal prison camp. 

16. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the 

Court. The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or 

sentence that the defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's 

attorney or the government, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the government 

or the Court. The defendant understands further that any recommendation that the government 

makes to the Court as to sentencing, whether pursuant to this agreement or otherwise, is not 

binding on the Court and the Court may disregard the recommendation in its entirety. 

17. After timely fulfilling all the terms and conditions of the Agreement, no 

prosecution for the offenses set out on pages 1 and 2 of this Agreement will be instituted in this 

District, and the charges against the defendant if any, will be dismissed. 

18. After timely fulfilling the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the United 

States agrees that no prosecution will be instituted or initiated against the defendant for any and 

all criminal charges which might otherwise in the future be brought against the defendant that 

arise out of the ongoing FBI federal investigation for offenses that include but are not limited to 

those listed above. 

19. The defendant's fulfilling the terms and conditions of the Agreement also 

precludes the initiation of any and all criminal charges which might otherwise in the future be 

brought against Sarah Kellen, Adriana Ross, Lesley Groff, and Nadia Marcinkova or any 

employee of N.E.S. for any criminal charge that arises out of the ongoing federal investigation as 
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described above; Further, the United States Attorney's Office will not request, initiate, or in any 

way encourage immigration authorities to institute immigration proceedings against Ross or 

Marcinkova as a result of the ongoing investigation. 

20. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this 

Plea Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from its 

commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea Agreement 

because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the defendant's 

guilty plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant for any and all 

Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek if there is a conviction 

any sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant 

expressly waives any statute of limitations defense as to the offenses listed on page 2, supra and 

any constitutional or statutory speedy trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that 

such a defense exists as of the date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant 

understands that his violation of the terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to 

withdraw his guilty plea. 

21. By signing this agreement, the defendant asserts and certifies that he is aware of 

the fact that the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all 

criminal prosecutions the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial. The 

defendant further is aware that Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides 

that the Court may dismiss an indictment, information, or complaint for unnecessary delay in 

presenting a charge to the Grand Jury, filing an information, or in bringing a defendant to trial. 

The defendant hereby requests that the United States Attorney for the Southern District of 

Florida defer such prosecution. The defendant agrees and consents that any delay from the date 
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of this Agreement to the date of initiation of prosecution, as provided for in the terms expressed 

herein, shall be deemed to be a necessary delay at his own request, and he hereby waives any 

defense to such prosecution on the ground that such delay operated to deny him rights under 

Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and the Sixth Amendment to the 

Constitution of the United States to a speedy trial or to bar the prosecution by reason of the 

running of the statute of limitations for a period of months equal to the period between the 

signing of this agreement and the breach of this agreement, for the offenses listed on pages 1 and 

2 infra. The defendant further asserts and certifies that he understands that the Fifth Amendment 

and Rule 7(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provide that all felonies must be 

charged in an indictment presented to a grand jury. The defendant hereby agrees and consents 

that, if a prosecution against him is instituted for the offenses listed on pages 1 and 2, infra, it 

may be by way of an Information signed and filed by the United States Attorney, and hereby 

waives his right to be indicted by a grand jury. 

22. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and the 

defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date: By: 
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By: 

Date:   By: 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 
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GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), 

and Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following 

agreement: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count Information which charges 

that the defendant intentionally harassed two other persons, that is, S.K. and N.M., in an 

attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade those persons from reporting to a law enforcement 

officer of the United States the commission of a federal offense; in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) and 2. 

2. The defendant agrees and understands that the above charges involve his 

conduct, and the criminal conduct of others, between in and around early 2001 through in and 

around September 2007. This agreement resolves the federal criminal liability of the 

defendant and any co-conspirators in the Southern District of Florida growing out of any 
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criminal conduct by those persons known to the United States Attorney's Office for the 

Southern District of Florida as of the date of this plea agreement. 

3. The United States agrees that, upon entry of the defendant's guilty plea, its 

Grand Jury investigation will be suspended, and all pending litigation between the parties 

will be held in abeyance unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement, 

as explained in paragraph 18, infra. Both parties agree to maintain their evidence inviolate 

until all of the terms of this agreement have been satisfied. 

4. The defendant is aware that the sentence will be imposed by the Court after 

considering the Federal Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements (hereinafter 

"Sentencing Guidelines"). The defendant acknowledges and understands that the Court will 

compute an advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines and that the applicable 

guidelines will be determined by the Court relying in part on the results of a Pry-Sentence 

Investigation by the Court's probation office, which investigation will commence after the 

guilty plea has been entered. The defendant is also aware that, under certain circumstances, 

the Court may depart from the advisory sentencing guideline range that it has computed, and 

may raise or lower that advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines. The defendant 

is further aware and understands that the Court is required to consider the advisory guideline 

range determined under the Sentencing Guidelines, but is not bound to impose that sentence; 

the Court is permitted to tailor the ultimate sentence in light of other statutory concerns, and 

such sentence may be either more severe or less severe than the Sentencing Guidelines' 
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advisory sentence. Knowing these facts, the defendant understands and acknowledges that 

the Court has the authority to impose any sentence within and up to the statutory maximum 

authorized by law for the offenses identified in paragraph 1 and that the defendant may not 

withdraw the plea solely as a result of the sentence imposed. 

5. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts 

1 and 2 of the In formation, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment 

of up to one (1) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of 

one (1) year. In addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may 

impose a fine of up to $100,000 as to each count. 

6. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any 

sentence imposed under paragraph 4 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount 

of $50 will be imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of 

sentencing. 

7. The defendant understa s that the Court will order that he must pay full 

restitution to all victims of the off se o which he is pleading guilty. The defendant 

understands that the amount of restitution owed to each victim will be determined at or 

before sentencing. 

8. The parties agree to jointly recommend that the defendant receive a sentence 

of eighteen (18) months' imprisonment, to be followed by one (1) year of supervised release, 

and a fine of $200,000. The parties' further agree to jointly recommend that the Court 
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impose one year of home confinement as a special condition of supervised release. 

9. The defendant agrees that, if any of the victims identified in the federal 

investigation file suit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, the defendant will not contest the 

jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida over his person 

and/or the subject matter, and the defendant will not contest that the identified victims are 

persons who, while minors, were victims of violations of Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections(s) 2422 and/or 2423. The United States agrees to provide the defendant's attorneys 

with a list of the identified victims, which will not exceed forty, after the defendant has 

signed this agreement and has been sentenced. The United States further agrees to make a 

motion with the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida for the 

appointment of a guardian ad litem for the identified victims and the defendant's counsel 

may contact the identified victims through that guardian. 

10. The United States has reached this agreement with the defendant in response 

to the defendant's request to globally resolve his state and federal criminal liability. To do 

so, the defendant further understands and acknowledges that he must undertake certain 

actions with the State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach 

County (hereinafter, "State Attorney's Office"). 

11. In addition to entering a guilty plea in the instant case, the defendant agrees 

that, prior to his sentencing on the federal charges, he will plead guilty to an Information 

filed by the State Attorney's Office charging an offense for which the defendant must register 
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as a sex offender, that is, solicitation of minors to engage in prostitution, in violation of Fl. 

Stat. 796.03. The defendant agrees that he will waive all challenges to the In formation filed 

by the State Attorney's Office and waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in 

the state court. 

12. The defendant agrees that he will make a binding recommendation that the 15th 

Judicial Circuit Court impose a sentence of at least eighteen (18) months' imprisonment to 

be followed by at least twelve (12) months of community control/home confinement to be 

served upon the defendant's release from federal prison. The defendant further represents 

that he has had discussions with the State Attorney's Office, which has agreed to likewise 

make this recommendation. The sentences imposed by the 15th Judicial Circuit Court may 

run concurrently with the federal sentence imposed pursuant to this agreement. 

13. The defendant agrees to provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all 

proposed agreements with the State Attorney's Office prior to entering into those agreements. 

14. The defendant agrees that the timely completion of these actions is material to 

this agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one 

of these conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to 

investigate and prosecute the defendant for any and all federal offenses. 

15. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and the probation 

office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant information 

concerning the offenses committed, whether charged or not, as well as concerning the 
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defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court 

and the Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express 

terms of any agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this 

Office further reserves the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity 

of punishment. 

16. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the 

Court. The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or 

sentence that the defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's 

attorney, the government, or the probation office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not 

binding on the government, the probation office or the Court. The defendant understands 

further that any recommendation that the government makes to the Court as to sentencing, 

whether pursuant to this agreement or otherwise, is not binding on the Court and the Court 

may disregard the recommendation in its entirety. The defendant understands and 

acknowledges, as previously acknowledged in paragraph 4 above, that the de fen dant may not 

withdraw his plea based upon the Court's decision not to accept a sentencing 

recommendation made by the defendant, the government, or a recommendation made jointly 

by both the defendant and the government. 

17. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL AND COLLATERALLY ATTACK 

THE SENTENCE. The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 
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affords the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed in this case. Acknowledging 

this, in exchange for the undertakings made by the United States in this plea agreement, the 

defendant hereby waives all rights conferred by Section 3742 to appeal any sentence 

imposed, including any restitution order, or to appeal the manner in which the sentence was 

imposed, unless the sentence exceeds the maximum permitted by statute. The defendant 

further voluntarily and expressly waives, to the maximum extent permitted by federal law, 

the right to collaterally attack his sentence in any post-conviction proceeding, including a 

motion on any ground brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2254, 28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 U.S.C. § 3572, 

or 18 U.S.C. § 3771. The defendant further understands that nothing in this agreement shall 

affect the government's right and/or duty to appeal as set forth in Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 3742(b). However, if the United States appeals the defendant's sentence 

pursuant to Section 3742(b), the defendant shall be released from the above waiver of 

appellate rights. By signing this agreement, the defendant acknowledges that he has 

discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this agreement with his attorney. 

18. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this 

Plea Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from 

its commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea 

Agreement because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the 

defendant's guilty plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant 

for any and all Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek any 
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sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant 

expressly waives any statute of limitations defense and any constitutional or statutory speedy 

trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that such a defense exists as of the 

date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant understands that his violation of 

the terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to withdraw his guilty plea. 

19. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and 

the defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By:  
A. MARIE VILLAFARA 

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By:  
JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

Date:   By:  
ROY BLACK, ESQ. 
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 

Date:   By:  
GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 

COUNSEL TO DEFENDANT 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), and 

Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following agreement: 

I. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count Information which charges the 

defendant as follows. Count I charges that the defendant attempted to intentionally harass another 

person, that is. S.K.. in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade S.K. from attending or testifying jo 

an official proceeding- that is a federal grand jury appearance in the Southern District of Florida. in 

violation of Title IS, U.S.C.. & 1 5 2(d)( I 1. Count 2 charges that the defendant attempted to 

intentionally harass another person. that is. N.M. in_an attempt to delay. prevent, and dissuade N.M. 

from attending or testifying in an official proceeding, that is a federal grand jury appearance in the 

Southern District of Florida. in violation of Title IS. U.S.C.4 )5 I 2/d)( I 1.Courn-1-ehargesthat-the

defendant-intentionalty-harassed-anotheepersoehat-isrEcGn-in-an-anempHo-delayrprewittrand 

dissuade-667-from-: iiitending-or-testifying-in-an-offieittl-proeeediftrthet-is-ii-Federal-Grand-dury 

appetwenee-inahe-Southern-Districtof-itlotidorinviolation-of--Titte ItUnited-Stetes-CederSeetions 
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444-2(4)(43,-and-2Hind-Gount-2-charges-that-the-deferidarifintentiontilly-harassedimoriter-porsottthat 

is, N.Kr iii-an-attempt-to-delanreventr itinklisstiadoNtivtrfrom-reporting-to-a-law-enforeenient 

offieer-of-the-United-States-the-cominission-of-a-fetleral-offensel-in-violinien-of-Tige-1-8r United 

States-GoderSectione. 1512(O2 t itmt-2. 

2. The defendant agrees and understands that the above charges involve the LinnW 

States Attorney's Office's and the Federal Bureau of Investigation's own investigation in  his 

conduct, and the conduct of others, between in and around early 2001 through in and around 

September 2007 involving aionsniring with others known and unknown to commit an offense 

Wingate United States, in violation of Title IS. U.S.C., 66 2422(b) and 24llibk all in violation of 

Title IS. U,S.C.. 6 371 and IS USC 2423tek and violating Title IS. U.S.C.. 66 2422tbl and 2423(b) 

and Irk and Title IS. U.S.C.. 66 1.591(8k1) and (2)conspiraoy-te-solicit-iniaors-to-engage-M

prostitutiormatc4te-trovel-in-imerstateeentnteme-teengage-M4Itien-sexual-eondtret. This agreement 

resolves the federal criminal liability of the defendant and any co-conspirators in the Southern 

District of Florida growing out of any criminal conduct by those persons known to the United States 

Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida as of the date of this plea agreement, including 

but not limited to the above-described scheme. 

3. The United States agrees that, upon entry of the defendant's guilty plea, its Grand Jury 

investigation will be suspended, and all pending Grand Jury subpoenas will be held in abeyance 

unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement, as explained in paragraph /Q49, 

infra. The defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending motion to intervene and to quash 

certain grand jury subpoenas. The defendant further agrees that the current custodian of certain 

computer equipment shall maintain that evidence inviolate until all of the terms of this agreement 
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have been satisfied.  Provided that the defendant does not breach this agreement the Government 

agrees that it will not seek to initiate federal investigation or prosecution for conduct subject to this 

agreement. 

4. Epstein shall enter his guilty Mai to both federal Information no later titan November 

5, 2007. Epstein shall consent to the plea being entered and sentence imposed by a United States 

magistrate judge pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 6 3401 (a). Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 3401(c). Epstein and dig 

Government ,grcc to recommend to -Georttvlagistratethe Maajstrate-Judge that the Pre-Sentence 

Investigation  Report be waivednot be reauested -in which case Epstein and the Government agree 

that the sentence shall be imposed on the date of plea, that Epstein be released on bail, that travel 

Shall not be restricted during the period of bail and that Enstein he permitted to self-report to the 

facility designated by the United States Bureau of Prisons to commence his sentence 75 days after 

sentencing. If the Court matt ire% a Pre-Sentence Investigation Report, Epstein shall be sentenced on 

a later date but th -trtic the bail [ravel  and self-report conditions as outlined in this 

paragragliThe-defeedant-is-awareihat-the-sentenee-will-be-imposed-hyrhe-Goun-aftereonsidering

the lederal-Senteneing-Guidelines-and-PolieyStatentemslhereinafter enteneing-GuklelineauHlhe 

riefer,denHkeknowledgesond-understands4haHlie-C-mm-willoomputeenotlyisorr.senteneetnuter-the 

Sentenoing.Guidelnieson4-that-the-applierible-guidelines-will-be-determined-by-the-Gotirt-n4yitwiti 

part-on-the-restilts-of-u-lke-Semenee--Investigation-brthe-Getwils-probation—offieerwhieli 

investigation-wil-commenceeftertheguiltypletthus-beeweriteredrThedefendimt-isalso-awarothatl 

underoeraiineiveumstaneesr the-Gottrumwdeparrfromilte-advisery-sentenoing-guideline-nmgothat 

it-Ita,contoutedr and-ittity-raise-ur-lower-that-advisory-seinenee-under-the-Senteneing-Guidelinear 

The-defeadant-is-fteTher-aware-atifientlentands-that-the-Cetal-is-retteired-te-eansider-the-aavisory 
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guideline-range-determined-waler-tho-Seitteneing-Griidetirresrbirt-is-inn-borntd-m-imposo-thin 

senteneci-the-Coun-ismerinitted-tottnlor-thi)mItimate-sentenee-in-lightof-othorstattitory-conterns, 

ani.“tiebsenterwernaybeeitheemore-severeoplessseveretbanthe-SenteneiagGuidelinest-advisory 

senteiteerKnowingthr,e factstliedefendiun-uderstrindsondmoknowledges-thattheemblinethe 

nuiltority-to-imposeany-sentenetwithin-and-upto.the-statutorymniximumouthorized.by-htw-femlie 

offensesidenricredinparagrapli-l-and-thattlie-defendant-inny-itotwithdraw-theolen-solelyos-arestilt 

of-the sentence-imposed, 

5. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts and 

2 of the Information, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment of up to one 

(I) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of one (1) year. In 

addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may impose a fine of up to 

S100,000 as to each count. 

6. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any sentence 

imposed under paragraph 3 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount of $50 will be 

imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of sentencing. 

;:—.--The-deferiMmi-onilerstands-thaftheCourtwill-erdeentat-he-musimay-full-ronitutionto 

all-vietims-oftheoffimseto-wkieh-lieis-plettding-goiliyr Thedefentlant-tanterstrintts-that-the-anietint 

of-rostitation-owed-to-eatth-vielint-will-bedetemiined-at-or-beforesentimein& 

7.8:- The panics agree to-jointly-recommend pursuant to Fed R. Crim. P. II(010(1(04) 

that the defendant receive a sentence of eighteen (18) months' imprisonment, to be followed by two 

one (21) years of supervised release; and a fine of $200,000. The parties' further agree to jointly 

reeornmend-that the Court impose one (I) year of home confinement as a special condition of 
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supervised release.  The panics further agree that there should is no restitution for the offenses 

charged 

8. The panics agree that the UnitedStatesSentencing Guidelines as embed would result in n 

a sentencingsange of 10-16 months. amine resultingirom the application of U.S.S.G. 211.2 base 

offense level of 14, with no enhancement or cross-reference, reduced by two levels for acceptance of 

responsibility. The parties further agree to a 9: month2-month upward departure front the guidelines. 

29. The defendant agrees to fund a Trust set un in concert with the Government and under 

the surtvision oldie 15th Judicial Circuit in an for Paint Beach County. The defendant agrees that 

a Trustee will be appointedb the Circuit Court and that finds front the Trust will be available to be 

id'sbursed  at the Trustee's discretion to an agreed list of nersons_who seek reimbursement and make a 

good faith showing to the Trustee that they suffered iniury as a result of the conduct of the defendant. 

The defendant waives his right to contest liability or damages up to an amount agreed to by the 

parties for any settlements entered into by the Trustee. defendant's waiver is not to be construed 

as an admission of civil or criminal liability in regards to any of those who seek compensation from 

is  Tnist. The parties further agree that any person receiving funds from the Trust will be required to 

waive their right to separately pursue damages pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 4 2255.The-deletulant-ttgrees

thiar tranyolthe,4ctints-itlentifiedin-the-fedend-investigation-filesuit-pursuant-te IS U.S.C. § 2255, 

thedefendant-w441-txu-eontest-thejurisdietion-of-the U.S. Distriet-€ourKootheSaghern-Bistrie4Cf 

Merida  ever his-perporrimdror-iho-subjeet-mititerrand--the-tie dani-will-ot-eomost-that-the 

itlettlifted-yietims-are-persons-whor-while-ntittorsrwere-Stints-of-vieltdions-of-Tak4Sr-thnled 

vide-dledetiwthitTF
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atterneys-with-a-liet-okhe-irienticred-vietimsrwhieh-withiot-egoeed-fortyrefieethe-defertdant-has 

signeci-this-agreement-und-has-been-sentetteedrIthe-United-Stutes-funlierogreestontakoo-motion 

with-the-United-States-Distriet-Court-for-the-Setitheni-Distriet-of-Flerida-for-the-appointmerit-of-a 

guenfitin-ad-Igeat-kw-the-identified-vietipts-andikedofetukintis-eounsel-marcontriemite-identiried 

vientwAhrough-that-giterdiant 

4010. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that he must undertake certain 

actions with the State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County 

(hereinafter, "State Attorney's Office") in order to satisfy the United States' federal interest in the 

investigation and prosecution of his offenses, in accordance with the Justice Department's Petite 

policy. Epstein The defendant understands and acknowledges that the United States Attorney has no 

authority to require the State Attorney's Office to abide by any terms of this Agreement. EnsteinThe 

defendant understands that it is his obligation to undertake discussion with the State Attorney's 

Office to ensure compliance with these procedures. 

44ll. In addition to entering a guilty plea in the instant case, the defendant  and the Palm 

Beach County State Attorney's Office have agreed that the defendant will plead guilty to one I I) 

count of  solicitation of prostitution. in violation of FL. Stat. & 796.07 under the Indiernent as 

CW'rellilv pending against him (Case No. 2006-ef-009495AXXXMB). Thc defendant further agrees 

to rgrajguilty to an In funnel ion filed by the Palm Brach Counts. State Attorney's Office charging 

one al count of a violation of the following Florida Statute: Coercing a person to become a 

prostitute in violation of Fl, Stat. h 796.04. The terms of the Plea arc that the defendant will be 

adjudicated guilty and be placedgri sixtv 001 months' probation to run concurrently with the federal 

sentence referenced above. The defendant will enter his plea to the indictment at least 7 days before 
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he begins his federal sentence but not prior to the defendants sentencing before a federal judge The 

defendantwill enter his successive plea to the Infomiation after the conclusion of his federal 

sentence and supervised release. 

.42,-- flie-defendtint-tigrees-thathetnd-the-Pahrt43efteh-Cotritty-State-Ationtey!s-Offiee-will 

inakeitinitur binding-reeommernititien-that-the-court-intpose-a-sentenee-of-tp-least-eighteen (18)

month&-imprisenment-to-lie-followed-by-at-kust4welve (12) toortihsof-eenuntrinty-eontrolThonte 

‘..onftnement-toteservedopenthedefendan clense-liorn-federalptisonAliesesenteneesintiy-riiii 

coneurrently-with-the-federal-senteitee-itnooseditirsurint-to-this-agrceinent: 

4-312. The defendant agrees to waive all challenges to the Information filed by the State 

Attorney's Office and to waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in the state court. 

4411. The defendant agrees to provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all proposed 

agreements with the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office prior to entering into those 

agreements. 

4414. The defendant agrees that the timely completion of these actions is material to this 

agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one of these 

conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to investigate and 

prosecute Pi: rsteinthc defendant for any and all federal offenses as defined on page 2„Yreat. 

4615. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and i fa nresentence report is 

ordered by the magistrate judge desnine the ioint agreement of the panics that no such report shall be 

requested,: the probation office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant 

information concerning the offenses committed, whether-charged-or-notr as well as concerning the 
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defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court and the 

Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express terms of any 

agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this Office further reserves 

the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity of punishment.  Tly 

Government will not oppose the defendant's request that the Magistrate-Judge recommend to the 

Bureau of Prisons that the sentence be served at a federal prison camel 

4316. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the Court. 

The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or sentence that the 

defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's attomey_xt the 

government, or-the-orobation-offiee, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the 

government,-ihe probation-effiee-or the Court. The defendant understands further that any 

recommendation that the government makes to the Court as to sentencing, whether pursuant to this 

agreement or otherwise, is not binding on the Court and the Court may disregard the 

recommendation in its entirety.--The-defeadant-tinderstands-iincl-aeknowledgesriis-previously 

ttektioveledged-ia-intregraPh-4-aboverthat-the-deenduni-may-net-withdraw-his-plea-bitsedupowthe 

cotac-s-decisiewast-to-aegephi-sentetwirig-reeemmendationmadeby-thedelenduntohegovernment: 

or-o-recommendatioti-mociejoinfly-by-beth-tlie-defenderw-end-the-governmetur 

17. After timely fulfilling all the terms ad conditions of the Agreement. no prosecution 

for the offenses set out on pages I and 2 of this Agreement will be instituted in this District. and the 

charges against Epstein if any. will he dismissed. 

IS. Afier timely fulfilling the terms and conditions of this Agreement the United States 

agrees that no prosecmion will be institutedorinitiat d against the defendant cnminal
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charges which might otherwise in the future be brought against the defendant that arise out of the 

ogoing FBI federal investigation for offenses that include but am not limited to those listed above. 

19. The defendant's fulfilling the terms and conditions of the Agreement also precludes 

the initiation of any and all criminal charges which might otherwise in the future be brought against 

Sarah Kellen, Adriana Ross, Lesley Groff. and Nadia Marcinkova or any employee of N. KS. for any 

griminal charge that arises out of the ongoing federal investigatio as described above; Further. the 

United States Attorney's Office will not request, initiate, or in any way encourage immigration 

authorities to institute immigration proceedings

ongoing investigation. 

481----WM-VER-O1WaPPEALAND-COSATERAIL6V-A-T-PAGN-THE 

SENTKNG6,---Thedefenrkint-is-awatte-that-Title-I*Uotted-Siates-C-oderSeetien-3.742rtifforils-the 

delbudatit-tKright-tooppeal-thesentenee-imposeil-in-thisetiserAelmowledgingtliisrin-exehange-for 

the-tindertatangs-matlety-the-United-States-iwthis-plea-agreemenb-thettefendattliterebywitientl 

rights-coofeffed-by-Seetion-37424_ouppeatony-sentenee-imposetkineludingotty-rustitutionewderTor 

toappeal-die'nwnncr in which the set ttetlet' as4ntpose4unless4hesentetweekeeed&-the-uiux nwm 

peetnitied-by-statatecTlie-defenikraffinthey-yeittitaarily-and-expresslywaiweothemasimaiwextent 

permitted-by-federal-lawt-thnight-to-eollaterally-otitielt-Ins-sentenee-in-any-pwt-eotwietion 

pmeeeditigritteludingornotien-on-anygroond-brought-under-28 § 2251, 28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 

3572, or IS U.S.C. § 3771. The-defendant-furtherunderatands-that-nothing-in-this 

agreemetwsliall-atieet-the-geycntimeas-eight-andler-tluty-te-appeal-us-set-festh-iicPitle-1-871,1nited 

Staies-Coder Seetien-374204,-14tekeyerrif-the--United-States-appeals-ilie-detemlattt1s-sentenee 

purstiam-to-Seetion-3-742(b):41.e-defeiidant-shall-be-seleased-crein-the-aboye-witiver-ektppellate 
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riglits—tly-signing-this-uereementrthe-defondani-aek-nov.,lectges-that-lie-has-diseussed-the-appeal 

waiyer-set-ferth-ift-this-agreement-with-his-uttorney: 

4-9:1Q. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this Plea 

Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from its 

commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea Agreement 

because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the defendant's guilty 

plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant for any and all Federal 

crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek if there is a conviction any sentence 

for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant expressly waives any 

statute of limitations defense as to the offenses listed on page 2,supra  and any constitutional or 

statutory speedy trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that such a defense exists as 

of the date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant understands that his violation of the 

terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to withdraw his guilty plea. 

21. By signing this agreement. the defendant asserts and certifies that he is aware of the 

fact that the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all criminal 

Prosecutions the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial. The defendant further is 

aware that Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides that the Court may 

dismiss an indictment, information. or complaint for unnecessary delay in presenting a charge to the 

Grand Jury, filing an information, or in bringing a defendant to trial, The defendant hereby requests 

that the United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida defer such prosecution. The 

defendant agrees and consents that any delay from the date of this Agreement to the date of initiation 

of prosecution. as provided for in the terms expressed herein, shall be deemed to be a necessary  delay 
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at his own request, and he hereby waives any defense to such prosecution on the ground that such 

delay operated to deny him rights under Rule 486) ofthc Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and 

the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States to a speedy trial or to bar the 

prosecution by reason of the running of the statute of limitations fora period of months equal to the 

period between the signing of this agreement and the breach 0 f t his agreement, for the offenses listed 

on pages I and 2 infra, The defendant further asserts and certifies that he understands that the Filth 

Amendment and Rule 7400fthe Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provide that all felonies must 

be charged in an indictment presented to a grand jury. The defendant hereby agrees and consents 

that if a prosecution against him is instituted for the offenses listed on pages I and 2 infra. it may be 

by way of an Information signed and filed by the United States Attorney. and hereby waives his riglg 

to be indicted by a grand jury. 

awa. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and the 

defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date: By: 
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By: 

Date:   By: 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
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ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), 

and Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following 

agreement: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count Information which charges 

the defendant as follows. Count 1 charges that the defendant intentionally harassed another 

person, that is, L.G., in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade L.G. from attending or 

testifying in an official proceeding, that is a Federal Grand Jury appearance in the Southern 

District of Florida, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) and 2; 

and Count 2 charges that the defendant intentionally harassed another person, that is, N.M., 

in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade N.M. from reporting to a law enforcement 

officer of the United States the commission of a federal offense; in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) and 2. 
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itAio aAp- do( Ack 
2. 

inti4Of 
The defendant agrees and understands that the a ove rges involve his 

conduct, and the conduct of others, between in and around early 2001 through in and around 

September 2007 involving a conspiracy to solicit minors to engage in prostitution and to 

travel in interstate commerce to engage in illicit sexual conduct. This agreement resolves the 

federal criminal liability of the defendant and any co-conspirators in the Southern District of 

Florida growing out of any criminal conduct by those persons known to the United States 

Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida as of the date of this plea agreement, 

including but not limited to the above-described scheme. 

3. The United States agrees that, upon entry of the defendant's guilty plea, its 

Grand Jury investigation will be suspended, and all pending Grand Jury subpoenas will be 

held in abeyance unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement, as 

explained in paragraph 19, infra. The defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending 

motion to intervene and to quash certain grand jury subpoenas. The defendant further agrees 

that the current custodian of certain computer equipment shall maintain that evidence 

inviolate until all of the terms of this agreement have been satisfied. 

4. The defendant is aware that the sentence will be imposed by the Court after 

considering the Federal Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements (hereinafter 

"Sentencing Guidelines"). The defendant acknowledges and understands that the Court will 

compute an advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines and that the applicable 

guidelines will be determined by the Court relying in part on the results of a Pre-Sentence 
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Investigation by the Court's probation office, which investigation will commence after the 

guilty plea has been entered. The defendant is also aware that, under certain circumstances, 

the Court may depart from the advisory sentencing guideline range that it has computed, and 

may raise or lower that advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines. The defendant 

is further aware and understands that the Court is required to consider the advisory guideline 

range determined under the Sentencing Guidelines, but is not bound to impose that sentence; 

the Court is permitted to tailor the ultimate sentence in light of other statutory concerns, and 

such sentence may be either more severe or less severe than the Sentencing Guidelines' 

advisory sentence. Knowing these facts, the defendant understands and acknowledges that 

the Court has the authority to impose any sentence within and up to the statutory maximum 

authorized by law for the offenses identified in paragraph 1 and that the defendant may not 

withdraw the plea solely as a result of the sentence imposed. 

5. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts 

1 and 2 of the Information, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment 

of up to one (1) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of 

one (1) year. In addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may 

impose a fine of up to $100,000 as to each count 

6. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any 

sentence imposed under paragraph 3 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount 

of $50 will be imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of 
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sentencing. 

7. The defendant understands that the Court will order that he must pay full 

restitution to all victims of the offense to which he is pleading guilty. The defendant 

understands that the amount of restitution owed to each victim will be determined at or 

before sentencing. 

8. The parties agree to jointly recommend that the defendant receive a sentence 

of eighteen (18) months' imprisonment, to be followed by two (2) years of supervised 

release; and a fine of $200,000. The parties' further agree to jointly recommend that the 

Court impose one year of home confinement as a special condition of supervised release. 

9. The defendant agrees that, if any of the victims identified in the federal 

investigation file suit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, the defendant will not contest the 

jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida over his person 

and/or the subject matter, and the defendant will not contest that the identified victims are 

persons who, while minors, were victims of violations of Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections(s) 2422 and/or 2423. The United States agrees to provide the defendant's attorneys 

with a list of the identified victims, which will not exceed forty, after the defendant has 

signed this agreement and has been sentenced. The United States further agrees to make a 

motion with the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida for the 

appointment of a guardian ad litem for the identified victims and the defendant's counsel 

may contact the identified victims through that guardian. 
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10. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that he must undertake 

certain actions with the State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm 

Beach County (hereinafter, "State Attorney's Office") in order to satisfy the United States' 

federal interest in the investigation and prosecution of his offenses, in accordance with the 

Justice Department's Petite policy. Epstein understands and acknowledges that the United 

States Attorney has no authority to require the State Attorney's Office to abide by any terms 

of this Agreement. Epstein understands that it is his obligation to undertake discussion with 

the State Attorney's Office to ensure compliance with these procedures. 

11. In addition to entering a guilty plea in the instant case, the defendant agrees to 

plead guilty to an Information filed by the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office 

charging an offense for which the defendant must register as a sex offender, that is, 

solicitation of minors to engage in prostitution, in violation of Fl. Stat. 796.03. The 

defendant must enter this guilty plea before he is sentenced on the federal offenses. 

12. The defendant agrees that he and the Palm Beach County State Attorney's 

Office will make a joint, binding recommendation that the Court impose a sentence of at least 

eighteen (18) months' imprisonment to be followed by at least twelve (12) months of 

community control/home confinement to be served upon the defendant's release from federal 

prison. Those sentences may run concurrently with the federal sentence imposed pursuant 

to this agreement. [NB: The other option is: The defendant and the Palm Beach County 

State Attorney's Office shall make a joint, binding recommendation that the Court 
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impose a sentence of at least sixty (60) months' probation, which will include at least 

twelve (12) months of community control/home confinement to be served upon the 

defendant's release from federal prison.] 
N 

13. The defendant agrees to waive all challenges to the Information filed by the 

State Attorney's Office and to waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in the 

state court. 

14. The defendant agrees to provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all 

proposed agreements with the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office prior to entering 

into those agreements. 

15. The defendant agrees that the timely completion of these actions is material to 

this agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one 

of these conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to 

investigate and prosecute Epstein for any and all federal offenses. 

16. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and the probation 

office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant information 

concerning the offenses committed, whether charged or not, as well as concerning the 

defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court 

and the Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express 

terms of any agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this 

Office further reserves the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity 
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of punishment. 

17. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the 

Court. The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or 

sentence that the defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's 

attorney, the government, or the probation office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not 

binding on the government, the probation office or the Court. The defendant understands 

further that any recommendation that the government makes to the Court as to sentencing, 

whether pursuant to this agreement or otherwise, is not binding on the Court and the Court 

may disregard the recommendation in its entirety. The defendant understands and 

acknowledges, as previously acknowledged in paragraph 4 above, that the defendant may not 

withdraw his plea based upon the Court's decision not to accept a sentencing 

recommendation made by the defendant, the government, or a recommendation made jointly 

by both the defendant and the government. 

18. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL AND COLLATERALLY ATTACK 

THE SENTENCE. The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 

affords the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed in this case. Acknowledging 

this, in exchange for the undertakings made by the United States in this plea agreement, the 

defendant hereby waives all rights conferred by Section 3742 to appeal any sentence 

imposed, including any restitution order, or to appeal the manner in which the sentence was 

imposed, unless the sentence exceeds the maximum permitted by statute. The defendant 
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further voluntarily and expressly waives, to the maximum extent permitted by federal law, 

the right to collaterally attack his sentence in any post-conviction proceeding, including a 

motion on any ground brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2254, 28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 U.S.C. § 3572, 

or 18 U.S.C. § 3771. The defendant further understands that nothing in this agreement shall 

affect the government's right and/or duty to appeal as set forth in Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 3742(b). However, if the United States appeals the defendant's sentence 

pursuant to Section 3742(b), the defendant shall be released from the above waiver of 

appellate rights. By signing this agreement, the defendant acknowledges that he has 

discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this agreement with his attorney. 

19. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this 

Plea Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from 

its commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea 

Agreement because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the 

defendant's guilty plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant 

for any and all Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek any 

sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant 

expressly waives any statute of limitations defense and any constitutional or statutory speedy 

trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that such a defense exists as of the 

date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant understands that his violation of 

the terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to withdraw his guilty plea. 
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20. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and 

the defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date:   By:  
R ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By:  
JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

Date:   By:  
GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United Stales Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), and 

Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following agreement: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count Information which charges the 

defendant as follows. Count I charges that the defendant attempted to intentionally harass another 

person, that is,S.K.. in an attempt to delay prevent, and dissuade S.K. from attending or testifying in 

an official proceeding, that is a federal wand iury appearance in the Southern District of Florida. in 

violation of Title 18, U.S.C.. 4 1512(c11(1), Count 2 charges that the defendant attempted to 

intentionally harass another person. that is. N.M.. in an attempt to delay. prevent. and dissuade N.M 

from attending or testifying in an official proceeding, that is a federal grand jury appearance in the 

Southern District of Florida. in violation of Title IS, U.S.C..4 1512(d)f I ).Count-t-elierges-diut the 

defendant-imentionalty-harassed-onodier-personythat-i.s4,4rin-affrattempt-tollelay.-preverttrmul 

dissuade-6Grfrem-ftnending-omestifying-in-en-offieiel-pmeeedingt-diat-is-a-Fedenit-Grand-Jory 

appearonee-M-the-Seuthern-Distriefef-Fleridar  in-W.166<m of Title-I-SrUnited-StatesCroderSeetions 
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441-2(djal-and-a&tutd-Geoni4ehargesthattlte-defendunt-intentionally-hanissedimether-perseitrthas 

iorNa r in-an-ottempt-to-delityr proventr and-disstiedeatArfrom-reporting-to-o-kiw-enforeement 

offieer-ef-the-United-States-the-eonimission-of-o-federol-offensc-iii-violation-of-Title 18. United 

States-Goder 8eetions-1-54-2(4-04.  and 2. 

2. The defendant agrees and understands that the above charges involve the United 

States Attorney's Office's and the Federal Bureau of Investigation's own investigation in his 

conduct, and the conduct of others, between in and around early 2001 through in and around 

September 2007 involving 0-011SPililIC with others known and unknown to commit an offense 

against the United States, in violation of Title 18. U.S.C.. 66 2422(b) and 2423(b): all in violation of 

Title 18, U.S.C.. 6 371 and 18 USC 2423(c): and violatingTitle IS. U.S.C.. 46 2422(b) and 2423Ibl 

and (n; and Title IS. U.S.C.. 66 1591(O11 and (2)eonspiraey-te-setiett-ininors-to-engage-in

prostitution-and to travel in interolateeomincrce to enguge in iliieit-soxuokondtset. This agreement 

resolves the federal criminal liability of the defendant and any co-conspirators in the Southern 

District of Florida growing out of any criminal conduct by those persons known to the United States 

Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida as of the date of this plea agreement, including 

but not limited to the above-described scheme. 

3. The United States agrees that, upon entry of the defendant's guilty plea, its Grand Jury 

investigation will be suspended, and all pending Grand Jury subpoenas will be held in abeyance 

unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement, as explained in paragraph 2049, 

infra. The defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending motion to intervene and to quash 

certain grand jury subpoenas. The defendant further agrees that the current custodian orcertain 

computer equipment shall maintain that evidence inviolate until all of the terms of this agreement 
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have been satisfied.  Provided that the defendant does not breach this agreement, the Government 

agrees that it will not seek to initiate federal investigation or prosecution for conduct subject to this 

agreement. 

4. Epstein shall enter his guilty plea to both federal Information no later than November 

5, 2007. Epstein shall consent to the plea being entered and sentence imposed by a United States 

magistrate judge pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 4 3401 (at Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 4 3401(c). Epstein and the 

Government agree to recommend to -GeutiMagistratethe Magistrate-Judge that the Pre-Sentence 

Investigation Report be-vettivednot he requested -in which case Epstein and the Government agree 

that the sentence shall be imposed on the date of plea. that Epstein be released on bail, that travel 

shall not be restricted during the Period of bail and that Epstein be permitted to self-report to the 

facility designated by the United States Bureau of Prisons to commence his sentence 75 days after 

sentencing. If the Court requires a Pre-Sentence Investigation Report. Epstein shall be sentenced on 

a later date but the panics agree to the bail. travel and self-report conditions as outlined in this 

paragraph.Thedefendant-is-oware-that-the-Sentetlee-Wi11-be-iMpOSed-hy-11*-C4Urtitaer-eOnSklefing

the-Fe' deml-Sentetteing-Gukklittemtnd-Pelicy-Statements(hertimtfie entetteingGuidolineeAlte 

delendant-iteknowledgesimd-understands-thatille-C-Ottil-will-eomputean-advisocysentenee-under-the 

Senteneing-Guideline: -thafthe-applieable-gnidolines-will-be-deteetined-by-the-Gounielying-in 

tutu-on-the redults-ef-a-Pre-Sentenee-lnyestigatien-by-die-counis--probation-offieer whigh 

investigation-will eommenteofter-thegnilty-plea-has-been-etitered—Thetlefemlunt-is-alsoltwere-thati 

undeeeertantoire-untstaiteesr the-Cettrt-may-depati-from-theadvisotysenteneing-goidelinerettge-that 

it-has-eempttiettrundium-ruise-or-lo ol-pdvisorrsetnetterunder-ihe-Seittonoing-Gaidelines: 

The-defendant-is-furdter-aware-and-understends-that-the-Coatt-is-requiFed-to-eonsidemhe-advisery 
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guideline-ninge-dmennine4-onder-the-Senteneieg-Guidelinesrbot-is-not-beund-to-impose-that 

sentemmthe-Gourt-ismermitted-to-utilor-themItimate-sentence-in4ightmfoter-statutorflom , 

and-stieb-semenee-may4meitheemoreseveremeless severe-thawthe-SenteneingtioidelniesLmtvisocy 

sentettee:—Knewing-these-fautcrihe-delendant-undemunids-andnektiowledges-theHhe-Golimhtmthe 

autherny4o-impose-aiw-sentenee-withinoinktipm-thestatutory-numitnumouthociced-bylaw-feethe 

offenses-identified-iwporegraph-t-and4hat-thedefendant-maynomeithdramthe-pleacok4asmremilt 

of-the-sentenee-imposed= 

S. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts I and 

2 ofthc Information, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment of up to one 

(1) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of one (I) year. In 

addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may impose a fine of up to 

S100,000 as to each count. 

6. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any sentence 

imposed under paragraph 3 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount of S50 will be 

imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of sentencing. 

gr—The-defertdommriderstamitkihmtheCourfwillmnkethet4lemust-pay-full-restimitioteto 

all-Meinnsof-the-offense-to-whieh4mispkiading-guiltyr-Thedelendamtindertuermis-that-the-antount 

ef-restitution-owed-tomaelmsietim-will-be-deterininedmimr-before-sentenoing: 

2,8:- The parties agree tojeimlymeommend  pursuant to Fed P.. Crim. P. 11(O4(1kWi 

that the defendant receive a sentence of eighteen (18) months' imprisonment, to be followed by two 

pne  (21) years of supervised release; and a fine of $200,000. The parties' further agree te-jointly 

reeommend-that the Court impose one  (1) year of home confinement as a special condition of 
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supervised release.  The panics further agree that there should is no restitution for the offenses 

charged 

8. The pan ies agree that the United States SentencingGuidelines as applied would result in it 

a  sentencing range of 10-16 months, a range resulting from the application of U.S.S.G. 211.2 base 

offense level of 14. with no enhancement or cross-reference, reduced by two levels for acceptance of 

responsibility. The parties further agree to a 2-month2-month upward departure from the guidelines. 

29. The defendant agrees to fund a Trust set up in concert with the Government and under 

the supervision of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County. The defendant agrees that 

a Trustee will be appointed by the Circuit Court a  that funds from the Trust will be available to be 

disbursed at the Trustee's discretion to an agreed list of persons who seek reimbursement and make a 

good faith showing to the Trustee that they suffered in itiry as a result of the conduct of the defendant. 

The defendant waives his right to contest liability or damages up to an amount agreed to by the 

panics for any settlements entered into by the Trustee. The defendant's waiver is not to be construed 

as an admission of civil or criminal liability in regards to any athose who seek compensation from 

the Trust. The Panics further agree that any person receiving funds from the Trust will be required to 

waive their right to separately pursue damages Pursuant to 18 2255.T-he-defendant-agrees 

that. if any-of-the-vietims-identifted-in-thefedera4inverstigetion-file-suit-pursuana 

thedefendantrillnet-eornest-thejurisdietion-ofSnistriet-Getirt-forthe-Sotithern-Distriet-ef 

clorida-over-his-person-andlor-the-subieet-inatterraml-the-tlefendent-will-not-contest-that-the 

identified-vietims-ate-persons-whorwhilemnoetrwere-vietirna-oPorettnions-of Title 18, United

Steres-Goder Seolionsfs)-2422-andlor 2123. The Uaited-States-agrees-to-provide-the-defentkauls 
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atterneys-with-ii4ist-ofthe-identified-yienins. whieli-wil4not-exeeed-tbayr efler-the-defeiniant4ins 

sigited-thisngneement-and-has-beensetitenee The4Aited-States-furthenagreesto-make-aniotion 

with-the-Unned-States-Distriet-Coun-for-the-Soitthern-Distriet-ocEloride-for-the appointment-of-a 

guerdiensid-liteni-for4he-identified-vietims-and-thedefendantls-eounsehmaycontact-the-identitied 

vietimsibrough4bat-guardiein 

4010. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that he must undertake certain 

actions with the State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County 

(hereinafter, "State Attorney's Office") in order to satisfy the United States' federal interest in the 

investigation and prosecution of his offenses, in accordance with the Justice Department's Petite 

policy. tipstoinThe defendant understands and acknowledges that the United States Attorney has no 

authority to require the State Attorney's Office to abide by any terms of this Agreement. EpsteinThe 

defendant understands that it is his obligation to undertake discussion with the State Attorney's 

Office to ensure compliance with these procedures. 

44-11. In addition to entering a guilty plea in the instant case, the defendant  and the Palm 

Beach County State Attorney's Office have agreed that the defendant will plead guilty to one (11 

count of solicitation of prostitution, in violation of FL. Stat. 6 796.07 under the Indicment as 

currently pending against him (Case No. 2006-c f-009495AXXXMB). The defendant further agrees 

to plead guilty to an Information filed by the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office charging 

one O1 count of a violation of the following Florida Statute; Coercing a person to become a 

prostitute in violation of Ft. Stat. 4 796.04. The terms of the plea are that the defendant will be 

adjudicated guilty and be placed on sixty (601 months' probation to run concunentl y with the federal 

sentence referenced above. The defendant will enter his plea to the indictment at least 7 days before
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he begins his federal sentence but not odor to the defendants sentencing before a federal iud&e. The 

defendant will enter his successive [ilea to the Infomtation after the conclusion of his federal 

sentence and supervised release. 

4-2r--The-tlefernints-agrees-that-heond-the-Patm-BenebCotinty State-Auerneylseffiee-wi41 

make-a-joitur binding-recommendation-that-the-Gourt-imposeit-sentenee-of-m-least-eighteen-(484 

inotiths'-imprisennient-te-be-followed-byutletiat-twelve+1-23-months-of-eommunity-eentrolThoirte 

confmementio-beaerved-upon-thedefendontz-seckw. -from-ferleml-prisim4liosesenteneesmay-nin 

coneurreinly-with-tho-fedenil-sentenee4mposed-pursuant-to-this-agreemenh 

4412. The defendant agrees to waive all challenges to the Information filed by the State 

Attorney's Office and to waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in the state court. 

4413. The defendant agrees to provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all proposed 

agreements with the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office prior to entering into those 

agreements 

4414. The defendant agrees that the timely completion of these actions is material to this 

agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one of these 

conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to investigate and 

prosecute Epsteielhe defendant for any and all federal offenses as defined on page 2. supra. 

4415.. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and if a presentence report is 

ordered by the magistrate judge despine the joint agreement of the parties that no such report shall be 

requested.: the probation office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant 

information concerning the offenses committed, whethercharged-or-riotr as well as concerning the 
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defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court and the 

Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express terms of any 

agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this Office further reserves 

the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity of punishment.  The 

Government will not oppose the defendant's request that the Magistrate-Judge recommend to the 

Bureau of Prisons that the sentence be served at a federal prison camp./ 

4-716. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the Court. 

The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or sentence that the 

defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's attorney or; the 

government, ef-the-probation-effiee, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the 

govemment,-the probation-offtee-or the Court. The defendant understands further that any 

recommendation that the government makes to the Court as to sentencing, whether pursuant to this 

agreement or otherwise, is not binding on the Court and the Court may disregard the 

recommendation in its entirety.—T-he-defendant--tinderstands-and-neknowledgesras-previously 

tieknowledged-iii-panigraph 4 abover that-the-detimdant-inity-itot-withdraw-Ins-plen-based-upon-the 

C,ourtzsileeisionnot4otieceps-seritetteintreconunendationinade-by4hodefentkintrthegovernment; 

er-a-Peeronunendatien-inadejointly-by-bot-the-defeodant-and-the-goverottient: 

17. After timely fulfilling all the terms and conditions of the Agreement, no prosecution 

for the offenses set out on pages I and 2 of this Agreement will be instituted in this District, and the 

charges against Epstein if any, will be dismissed. 

IS. After timely fulfilling the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the United Sta 

agrees that no prosecution will be instituted or initiated against the defendant for any and all criminal 
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barges which might otherwise in the future be brought against the defendant that arise out of the 

onzoine FBI federal investigation for offenses that include but are not limited to those listed above. 

19. The defendant's fulfilling the terms and conditions of the Agreement also precludes 

the initiation of any and all criminal charges which might otherwise in the future be brought against 

Sarah Kellen, Adriana Ross, Lesley Groff, and Nadia Marcinkova or any employee of N.E.S. for any 

criminal charge that arises out of the ongoing federal investigation as described above; Further. the 

Linked States Attorney's Office will not request, initiate, or in any way encourage immigration 

authorities to institute immigration Proceedings against Ross or Marcinkova as a result of the 

ongoing investigation. 

18- 1AtArlVE.Ra2aF-11,1GlacPPE1.-AND-C-GlalaAT-FrRALLX-A-1:FAC-K-THE 

SENTENGET-The-defendant-isoware-that-Tifle-187United-Stetes-GoderSeetion-3742-afferdsalte 

defenclainahe ril,ht-tooppealalw-sentenee-imposedin-thiseiperAelotowledgingaltisrinomehangeor 

theamdertakings-made-byabe-UnitedStates4e4his-pleu-agreetnentrthealefenalunt-hereby-waivesoll 

rightsemireired-by-Seetion-3742-tooppeol-any-sentettee-ititposedritieloalingeny-restitution-ortiorror 

tounnealabeinannepin-wItiehalie-seittetwe-was-imposed, Johns the-semeneeeKeeedsahemtiannum 

permitted-by-suititterThe-defendam-funlieevoluntorityondoxpressly-waiveraaheanweimumement 

penttitted-by-fedenil-lal-the-right-to-collaterally-attaek-his-sentenee-ip-any-post-eotwietion 

proeeedingriftekidiftga-motion-enony-ground-broughfuntler-28-UrSk. § 225.1, 28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 

U.S.C. § 3572, or 18 U.S.C. § 3771. The-defendant-further-understands-that-nething-in-this 

agreementshall-affeet-the-govemmencs-fight-endkn-duty to ittmeal-us-set-foith-M-Title 18, United 

States-CoderSeetion 3712(6),—Howeve the-United-States-appettls-the-defendent!s-semenee 

pursumn-40-Seetion-3.742(4);-the-defendam-shall-be-released-frotn-the-above-waiver-ocappetlate 
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right&—By-sitoting-this-frigreententrthe-defendant-acknewledges-thai-he-lais-disaussed-the-appeal 

waiver :44 fortlyin-this-agreement-with-hisinterite 

4-920. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this Pica 

Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from its 

commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea Agreement 

because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the defendant's guilty 

plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant for any and all Federal 

crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek if there is a conviction any sentence 

for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant expressly waives any 

statute of limitations defense as to the offenses listed on one 2. supra and any constitutional or ...-• {  Formatted

statutory speedy trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that such a defense exists as 

of the date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant understands that his violation oft he 

terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to withdraw his guilty plea. 

21. By signing thisastreement. the defendant asserts and certifies that he is aware of the 

fact that the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all criminal 

>rosccultons 11 enioylhe righhtlo seed nd u 

aware that Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides th t the Court may 

dismiss an indictment. information. or complaint for unnecessarydelay in presenting a charge to the 

Grand Jury. tiling an information or inkingly a defendant to trial. The defendant hereby requests 

that the United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida defer such prosecution. The 

defendant agrees and consents that any delay from the date of this Agreement to the date of initiation 

ofprosecution. as provided for in the terms expressed herein. shall be deemed to be a necessary delay 
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at his own request, and he hereby waives any defense to such prosecution on the ground that such 

delay operated to deny him rights under Rule 4&b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and 

the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States to a speedy trial or to bar the 

prosecution by reason of the running of the statute of limitations for a period of months equal to the 

period between the signing of this agreement and the breach of this agreement, for the offenses listed 

on Dazes I and 2 infra. The defendant funher asserts and certifies that he understands that the Fifth 

Amendment and Rule 7(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure pmvide that all felonies must 

ye charged in an indictment presented to a grand jury. The defendant hereby agrees and consents 

that, if a prosecution against him is instituted for the offenses listed on pages I and 2 infi a. it maYbq 

by way of an Information signed and filed by the United States Attorney, and hereby waives his right 

to be indicted by a grand jury. 

2022. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and the 

defendant. There arc no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date:  By: 
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By: 

Date:   By: 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
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ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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In Re: 
Investigation of 
Jeffrey Epstein 

AGREEMENT 

IT APPEARING that the City of Palm Beach Police Department and the State 

Attorney's Office for the 15111 Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County (hereinafter 

the "State Attorney's Office") have conducted an investigation into the conduct of Jeffrey 

Epstein (hereinafter "Epstein"); 

IT APPEARING that the State Attorney's Office has charged Epstein with three 

counts of solicitation of prostitution in violation of Florida Statutes Section 796.07; 

IT APPEARING that the United States Attorney's Office and the Federal Bureau 

of Investigation have conducted their own investigation of the offenses and Epstein's 

background; 

IT APPEARING to the United States Attorney's Office and the Federal Bureau of 

Investigation that Epstein may have committed offenses against the United States from in 

or around 2001 through in or around October 2005, including: 

(1) knowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknown to commit 

offenses against the United States, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

2422(b) and 2423(b); all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371 and 18 

USC 2423(e); and 

(2) knowingly and willfully violating 18 USC 2422(b) and 2, 18 USC 2423(b), and 18 

USC 1591(a)(1),(2); 

IT APPEARING, after an investigation of the offenses and Epstein's background, 

that the interest of the United States pursuant to the Petite policy will be served by the 

following procedure; 

THEREFORE, on the authority of R. Alexander Acosta, United States Attorney 

for the Southern District of Florida, prosecution of these offenses shall be deferred in 

favor of prosecution by the State of Florida and prosecution of violations of 18 USC 

1512(d) and 18 USC 371, 113(a)(5) by the United States, provided that Epstein abides by 

the following conditions and the requirements of this Agreement set forth below. 

Should Epstein be proven to have violated any of the conditions of this 

Agreement, the United States Attorney may at any time initiate prosecution against 

Epstein for any offense listed above. In this case, the United States Attorney will furnish 

Epstein with notice specifying the conditions of the Agreement that he has violated. 
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Epstein's fulfilling the terms and conditions of the Agreement resolves any and all 

outstanding federal grand jury subpoenas that have requested witness testimony and/or 

the production of documents and/or computers in relation to the investigation that is the 

subject of the Agreement. Each subpoena will be withdrawn upon the execution of the 

Agreement and will not be re-issued absent reliable evidence of a violation of the 

Agreement. Epstein and his counsel agree that the computers that are currently under 

subpoena will be safeguarded in their current condition by Epstein's counsel or their 

agents until the terms and conditions of the Agreement are fulfilled. Provided that 

Epstein does not breach this agreement, the Government agrees that it will not seek to 

initiate federal investigation or prosecution for conduct subject to this agreement. 

Epstein understands that the United States Attorney has no authority to require the 

State Attorney's Office to abide by any terms of this agreement. Epstein understands that 

it is his obligation to undertake discussion with the State Attorney's Office to ensure 

compliance with these procedures, which compliance will be necessary to satisfy the 

United States' interest, pursuant to the Petite policy. 

By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that each of these terms is 

material to this agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a 

breach of any one of these conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the 

agreement and to investigate and prosecute Epstein for any and all federal offenses listed 

above at pg 1. 

By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that he is aware of the fact 

that the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all 

criminal prosecutions the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial. 

Epstein further is aware that Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 

provides that the Court may dismiss an indictment, information, or complaint for 

unnecessary delay in presenting a charge to the Grand Jury, filing an information, or in 

bringing a defendant to trial. Epstein hereby requests that the United States Attorney for 

the Southern District of Florida defer such prosecution. Epstein agrees and consents that 

any delay from the date of this Agreement to the date of initiation of prosecution, as 

provided for in the terms expressed herein, shall be deemed to be a necessary delay at his 

own request, and he hereby waives any defense to such prosecution on the ground that 

such delay operated to deny him rights under Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal 

Procedure and the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States to a speedy 

trial or to bar the prosecution by reason of the running of the statute of limitations for a 

period of months equal to the period between the signing of this agreement and the 

breach of this agreement. Epstein further asserts and certifies that he understands that the 

Fifth Amendment and Rule 7(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provide that 

all felonies must be charged in an indictment presented to a grand jury. Epstein hereby 

agrees and consents that, if a prosecution against him is instituted, it may be by way of an 

Information signed and filed by the United States Attorney, and hereby waives his right 

to be indicted by a grand jury. 
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Terms of the Agreement: 

1. Epstein shall plead guilty to the criminal charge in the Indictment as currently 

pending against him in the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County 

and in addition shall plead guilty to a 1 count Information filed by the State 

Attorney's Office charging a violation of the following Florida Statute: 

Procuring person under age of 18 for prostitution in violation of F.S.A. 

§ 796.03. 

2. Epstein and the State Attorney's Office shall make a joint, binding 

recommendation that the Court impose a sentence as follows: 

90 

(a) Epstein shall enter a plea agreement with the State Attorney's Office 

forthwith and thereafter enter his plea of guilty to the Indictment 

(Case 14 2006cf009495A3CXXMB) on a date after the date of 

imposition of his federal sentence as described in paragraph 5 and 6, 

infra but before the beginning of his term of federal imprisonment 

pstein shall thereafter be required to enter his plea of guilty to the 

nformation within 7 days after the completion of his federal term of 

m 
(b) ollowing the term of federal imprisonment Epstein shall be placed 

on three (3) years probation. 
As a special condition to that probation, Epstein will serve the first 

(1) year in community control. 

(d) Following community control, Epstein shall serve the remaining two 

(2) years of Probation on the charge that presently pending in the 

state Indictment 

(c) 

3/'Epstein shall waive all challenges to the Information filed by the State 

Attorney's Office and shall waive the right to appeal his conviction and 

sentence unless the Court imposes a sentence that exceeds the terms of the joint 

• recommendation in which case Epstein reserves the right to withdraw his plea 

n any other right to appeal 

4. Epstein shall provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all proposed 

agreements with the State Attorney's Office prior to entering into those 

agreements; 

5. Epstein shall plead guilty to an Information charging one (1) count charging a 

violation of 18 USC 1512(d) and one (1) count charging simple assault within 

the maritime and territorial jurisdiction of the United States in violation of 18 

USC §113(a)(5) and 18 USC §7(5). 

6. Epstein and the Government shall make a joint recommendation that the Court 

impose the maximum sentence of eighteen (18) months. Epstein, 
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acknowledging his right to appeal under 18 U.S.C. § 3742, hereby waives the 

rights conferred by § 3742 to appeal any sentence imposed, including any 

restitution order, or to appeal the manner in which the sentence was imposed, 

unless the sentence exceeds the maximum permitted by statute or is the result 

of ai t_ipward departure or upward variance from the guideline range that the 

CTaurt establishes at sentencing. 

7. Epstein shall enter his guilty plea to the federal Information no later than 

November 5, 2007. • 

the period of hail and that Epstein be permitted to self-

report to the facility designated by the United States Bureau of Prisons to 

commence his sentence 75 days after sentencing. Epstein and the Government 

further agree that the Government shall not object to Epstein's request that the 

Court recommend to the Bureau of Prisons that Epstein be designated to serve 

his sentence at a federal prison camp; and 

1r—Epstein agrees to fund a Trust set up in concert with the Government and under 

the supervision of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County. 

Epstein agrees that a Trustee will be appointed by the Circuit Court and that 

funds from the Trust will be available to be disbursed at the Trustee's discretion 

to an agreed list of persons who seek reimbursement and make a good faith 

showing to the Trustee that they suffered injury as a result of the conduct of 

Epstein. Epstein waives his right to contest liability or damages up to an 

amount agreed to by the parties for any settlements entered into by the Trustee. 

Epstein's waiver is not to be construed as an admission of civil or criminal 

-....liability in regards to any of those who seek compensation from the Trust. 

After timely fulfilling the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the United 

States agrees that no prosecution will be instituted or initiated against Epstein for any and 

all criminal charges which might otherwise in the future be brought against Epstein that 

arise out of the ongoing FBI federal investigation for offenses that include but are not 

limited to those listed above that could be brought under 18 U.S.C. §2423(b),(e) and (f), 

18 U.S.C. §2422(b), 18 U.S.C. §1591 or conspiracies or attempts to violate such statutes 

or for any other offense that is or has been the subject of the federal investigation being 

conducted by the Federal Bureau of Investigations and/or the United States Attorney's 

Office. 

I Epstein's fulfilling the terms and conditions of the Agreement also precludes the 

initiation of any and all criminal charges which might otherwise in the future be brought 

against Sarah Kellen, Adriana Ross, Lesley Groff, and Nadia Marcinkova or any 

employee of N.E.S. for any criminal charge that arises out of the ongoing federal 

investigation as described above; Further, no immigration proceeding will be instituted 

Lagainst Ross or Marcinkova as a result of the ongoing investigation 
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By signing this Agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has been 

read and explained to him. Epstein hereby states that he understands the conditions of this 

Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

Dated: 
JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

Dated: 
GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

Dated: 
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

EFTA00176669



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), 

Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant"), and counsel for the defendant, 

subject to approval by the Court, have agreed upon a negotiated plea pursuant to Rule 11 of 

the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and governed in part by Rule 11(cX1XC), the terms 

of which are as follows: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to the Information which charges that the 

defendant did knowingly and willfully combine, conspire, confederate and agree with 

persons known and unknown to commit an offense against the United States, that is, to use 

a facility or means of interstate or foreign commerce to knowingly persuade, induce, and 

entice individuals who had not attained the age of 18 years to engage in prostitution, in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2422(b); all in violation of Title 18, United 

States Code, Section 371. 
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2. The defendant is aware that the statutory maximum sentence for the offense 

listed in paragraph one is five (5) years' imprisonment, to be followed by up to three years' 

supervised release. In addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court 

may impose a fine of up to $250,000. 

3. The defendant also has been advised and understands that under the Sex 

Offender Registration and Notification Act, he must register as a sex offender and keep the 

registration current in each of the following jurisdictions: where he resides; where he is an 

employee; and where he is a student. The defendant understands and acknowledges that the 

requirements for registration include providing his name, his residence address, and the 

names and addresses of any places where he is or will be an employee or a student, among 

other information. The defendant further understands that, not later than three business days 

after any change of name, residence, employment, or student status, he must inform at least 

one jurisdiction in which he resides, is an employee, or is a student of such change. The 

defendant has been advised, and understands, that failure to comply with these obligations 

subjects him to prosecution for failure to register under federal law, 18 U.S.C. § 2250, which 

is punishable by a fine or imprisonment, or both. 

4. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any 

sentence imposed under paragraph 2 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount 

of $100 will be imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of 

sentencing. 
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5. The defendant understands that the Court will order that he must pay full 

restitution to all victims of the offense to which he is pleading guilty. The defendant 

understands that the amount of restitution owed to each victim will be determined at or 

before sentencing. 

6. This Plea Agreement is governed, in pail, by Federal Rule of Criminal 

Procedure 11(c)(1)(C). The parties have agreed that the defendant's sentence imposed by 

the Court shall be two (2) yews' imprisonment to be followed by three (3) years' supervised 

release, and a $250,000 fine. If the Court accepts and imposes the agreed term of 

imprisonment, the defendant may not withdraw this plea. If the Court rejects the agreement, 

and the defendant elects to withdraw his plea, the United States may prosecute the defendant 

for any and all Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek any 

sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. 

7. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and the probation 

office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant information 

concerning the offenses committed, whether charged or not, as well as concerning the 

defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court 

and the Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. 

8. The defendant understands and agrees that federal law mandates that he be 

taken into federal custody upon the entry of his guilty plea. 
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9. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL AND COLLATERALLY ATTACK 

THE SENTENCE. The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 

affords the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed in this case. Acknowledging 

this, in exchange for the undertakings made by the United States in this plea agreement, the 

defendant hereby waives all rights conferred by Section 3742 to appeal any sentence 

imposed, including any restitution order, or to appeal the manner in which the sentence was 

imposed, unless the sentence exceeds the maximum permitted by statute or is the result of 

an upward departure or upward variance from the guideline range that the Court establishes 

at sentencing. The defendant further voluntarily and expressly waives, to the maximum 

extent permitted by federal law, the right to collaterally attack his sentence in any post-

conviction proceeding, including a motion on any ground brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2254, 

28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 U.S.C. § 3572, or 18 U.S.C. § 3771. The defendant further understands 

that nothing in this agreement shall affect the government's right and/or duty to appeal as set 

forth in Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742(b). However, if the United States appeals 

the defendant's sentence pursuant to Section 3742(b), the defendant shall be released from 

the above waiver ofappellate rights. By signing this agreement, the defendant acknowledges 

that he has discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this agreement with his attorney. 

10. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this 

Plea Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from 

its commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea 
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Agreement because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the 

defendant's guilty plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant 

for any and all Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek any 

sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant 

expressly waives any statute of limitations defense and any constitutional or statutory speedy 

trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that such a defense exists as of the 

date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant understands that his violation of 

the terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to withdraw his guilty plea. 

11. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and 

the defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date:   By:  
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By:  
JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

Date:   By:  
ROY BLACK, ESQ. 

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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IN RE: 
INVESTIGATION OF 
JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

NON-PROSECUTION AGREEMENT 

IT APPEARING that Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter "Epstein") has committed offenses against 

the United States from in or around 2001 through in or around October 2005, including: 

(1) knowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknown to commit an 

offense against the United States, that is, to use a facility or means of interstate or 

foreign commerce to knowingly persuade, induce, or entice minor females to engage 

in prostitution, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 2422(b); all in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371; 

(2) knowingly and willfully conspiring with others known and unknown to travel in 

interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual conduct, as defined 

in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with minor females, in violation of Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 2423(b); all in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 

2423(e); 

(3) using a facility or means of interstate or foreign commerce to knowingly persuade, 

induce, or entice minor females to engage in prostitution; in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Sections 2422(b) and 2; 

(4) traveling in interstate commerce for the purpose of engaging in illicit sexual conduct, 

as defined in 18 U.S.C. § 2423(f), with minor females; in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Section 2423(b); and 

(5) knowingly, in and affecting interstate and foreign commerce, recruiting, enticing, and 

obtaining by any means a person, knowing that the person had not attained the age 

of 18 years and would be caused to engage in a commercial sex act as defined in 18 

U.S.C. § 1591(c)(1); in violation off itle 18, United States Code, Sections 1591(a)(1) 

and 2; and 

11' APPEARING that Epstein has accepted responsibility for his behavior by his signature 
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on this Agreement; and 

IT APPEARING, after an investigation of the offenses and Epstein's background, that the 

interest of the United States and Epstein's own interest and the interest of justice will be served by 

the following procedure; 

THEREFORE, on the authority of R. Alexander Acosta, United States Attorney for the 

Southern District of Florida, prosecution in this District for these offenses shall be deferred in favor 

of prosecution by the State of Florida, provided that Epstein abides by the following conditions and 

the requirements of this Agreement set forth below. 

Should Epstein violate any of the conditions of this Agreement, the United States Attorney 

may at any time initiate prosecution against Epstein for any offense. In this case, the United States 

Attorney will furnish Epstein with notice specifying the conditions of the Agreement which he has 

violated. 

After timely fulfilling all the terms and conditions of the Agreement, no prosecution for the 

offenses set out on page 1 of this Agreement will be instituted in this District, and the charges against 

Epstein if any, will be dismissed. 

Terms of the Agreement: 

1. Epstein shall plead guilty (not nolo contendere) to an Information filed by the 

State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach 

County (hereinafter, the "State Attorney's Office") charging violations of the 

following Florida Statutes: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

lewd and lascivious battery on a child, in violation of Fl. Stat. 

800.04(4); 

solicitation of minors to engage in prostitution, in violation of Fl. 

Stat. 796.03; and 

engaging in sexual activity with minors at least sixteen years of age, 

in violation of Fl. Stat. 794.05. 

2. Epstein and the State Attorney's Office shall make a joint, binding 

recommendation that Epstein serve at least two years in prison, without any 

opportunity for withholding adjudication or sentencing; and without 

probation or community control in lieu of imprisonment. 

3. Epstein shall waive all challenges to the Information filed by the State 

Attorney's Office and shall waive the right to appeal his conviction and 
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sentence. 

4. Epstein shall provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all proposed 

agreements with the State Attorney's Office prior to entering into those 

agreements. 

5. Epstein agrees that, ifany of the victims identified in the federal investigation 

file suit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, Epstein will not contest the jurisdiction 

of the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida over his person 

and/or the subject matter, and Epstein will not contest that the identified 

victims are persons who, while minors, were victims of violations ofTitle 18, 

United States Code, Sections(s) 2422 and/or 2423. 

6. The United States shall provide Epstein's attorneys with a list of the 

identified victims, which will not exceed forty, after Epstein has signed this 

agreement and entered his guilty plea. The United States shall make a motion 

with the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida for 

the appointment of a guardian ad litem for the identified victims and 

Epstein's counsel may contact the identified victims through that counsel. 

7. Epstein shall enter his guilty plea and be sentenced not later than September 

28, 2007, and shall begin service of his sentence not later than October 15, 

2007. 

8. Epstein shall serve at least 21 months in a state correctional institution. 

By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that each of these terms is material 

to this agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one of these 

conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to investigate and 

prosecute Epstein for any and all federal offenses. 

By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that he is aware of the fact that the 

Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all criminal prosecutions 

the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial. Epstein further is aware that Rule 48(b) 

of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides that the Court may dismiss an indictment, 

information, or complaint for unnecessary delay in presenting a charge to the Grand Jury, filing an 

information, or in bringing a defendant to trial. Epstein hereby requests that the United States 

Attorney for the Southern District of Florida defer such prosecution. Epstein agrees and consents 

that any delay from the date of this Agreement to the date of initiation of prosecution, as provided 

for in the terms expressed herein, shall be deemed to be a necessary delay at his own request, and 

he hereby waives any defense to such prosecution on the ground that such delay operated to deny 

him rights under Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and the Sixth Amendment 

to the Constitution of the United States to a speedy trial or to bar the prosecution by reason of the 
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running of the statute of limitations for a period of months equal to the period between the signing 

of this agreement and the breach of this agreement. Epstein further asserts and certifies that he 

understands that the Fifth Amendment and Rule 7(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure 

provide that all felonies must be charged in an indictment presented to a grand jury. Epstein hereby 

agrees and consents that, if a prosecution against him is instituted, it may be by way of an 

Information signed and filed by the United States Attorney, and hereby waives his right to be 

indicted by a grand jury. 

By signing this agreement, Epstein asserts and certifies that the above has been read and 

explained to him. Epstein hereby states that he understands the conditions of this Non-Prosecution 

Agreement and agrees to comply with them. 

Dated: 
JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

Dated: 
ROY BLACK, ESQ. 
COUNSEL TO JEFFREY EPSTEIN 

Dated: 
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), 

and Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following 

agreement: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count Information which charges 

the defendant as follows. Count 1 charges that the defendant intentionally harassed another 

person, that is, L.G., in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade L.G. from attending or 

testifying in an official proceeding, that is a Federal Grand Jury appearance in the Southern 

District of Florida, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) and 2; 

and Count 2 charges that the defendant intentionally harassed another person, that is, N.M., 

in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade N.M. from reporting to a law enforcement 

officer of the United States the commission of a federal offense; in violation of Title 18, 

United States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) and 2. 
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2. The defendant agrees and understands that the above charges involve his 

conduct, and the conduct of others, between in and around early 2001 through in and around 

September 2007 involving a conspiracy to solicit minors to engage in prostitution and to 

travel in interstate commerce to engage in illicit sexual conduct. This agreement resolves the 

federal criminal liability of the defendant and any co-conspirators in the Southern District of 

Florida growing out of any criminal conduct by those persons known to the United States 

Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida as of the date of this plea agreement, 

including but not limited to the above-described scheme. 

3. The United States agrees that, upon entry of the defendant's guilty plea, its 

Grand Jury investigation will be suspended, and all pending Grand Jury subpoenas will be 

held in abeyance unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement, as 

explained in paragraph 19, infra. The defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending 

mo iorF o ntervene and to quash certain grand jury subpoenas. The defendant further agrees 

that the current custodian of certain computer equipment shall maintain that evidence 

inviolate until all of the terms of this agreement have been satisfied. 

4. The defendant is aware that the sentence will be imposed by the Court after 

considering the Federal Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements (hereinafter 

"Sentencing Guidelines"). The defendant acknowledges and understands that the Court will 

compute an advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines and that the applicable 

guidelines will be determined by the Court relying in part on the results of a Pre-Sentence 
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Investigation by the Court's probation office, which investigation will commence after the 

guilty plea has been entered. The defendant is also aware that, under certain circumstances, 

the Court may depart from the advisory sentencing guideline range that it has computed, and 

may raise or lower that advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines. The defendant 

is further aware and understands that the Court is required to consider the advisory guideline 

range determined under the Sentencing Guidelines, but is not bound to impose that sentence; 

the Court is permitted to tailor the ultimate sentence in light of other statutory concerns, and 

such sentence may be either more severe or less severe than the Sentencing Guidelines' 

advisory sentence. Knowing these facts, the defendant understands and acknowledges that 

the Court has the authority to impose any sentence within and up to the statutory maximum 

authorized by law for the offenses identified in paragraph 1 and that the defendant may not 

withdraw the plea solely as a result of the sentence imposed. 

5. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts 

1 and 2 of the Information, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment 

of up to one (1) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of 

one (1) year. In addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may 

impose a fine of up to $100,000 as to each count. 

6. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any 

sentence imposed under paragraph 3 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount 

of $50 will be imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of 
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sentencing. 

7. The defendant understands that the Court will order that he must pay full 

restitution to all victims of the off nsjto hich he is pleading guilty. The defendant 

understands that the amount of restitution owed to each victim will be determined at or 

before sentencing. 

8. The parties agree to jointly recommend that the defendant receive a sentence 

6VNI 

of eighteen (18) months' imprisonment, to be followed by two-(1) years of supervised 

release; and a fine of $200,000. The parties' further agree to jointly recommend that the 

Court impose one year of home confinement as a special condition of supervised release. 

9. The defendant agrees that, if any of the victims identified in the federal 

investigation file suit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, the defendant will not contest the 

jurisdiction of the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of Florida over his person 

and/or the subject matter, and the defendant will not contest that the identified victims are 

persons who, while minors, were victims of violations of Title 18, United States Code, 

Sections(s) 2422 and/or 2423. The United States agrees to provide the defendant's attorneys 

with a list of the identified victims, which will not exceed forty, after the defendant has 

signed this agreement and has been sentenced. The United States further agrees to make a 

motion with the United States District Court for the Southern District of Florida for the 

appointment of a guardian ad litem for the identified victims and the defendant's counsel 

may contact the identified victims through that guardian. 
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10. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that he must undertake 

certain actions with the State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm 

Beach County (hereinafter, "State Attorney's Office") in order to satisfy the United States' 

federal interest in the investigation and prosecution of his offenses, in accordance with the 

Justice Department's Petite policy. tistcm understands and acknowledges that the United 

States Attorney has no authority to require the State Attorney's Office to abide by any terms 

. 
of this Agreement. understands that it is his obligation to undertake discussion with 

the State Attorney's Office to ensure compliance with these procedures. 

11. In addition to entering a guilty plea in the instant case, the defendant agrees to 

plead guilty to an Information filed by the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office 

charging an offense for which the defendant must register as a sex offender, that is, 

solicitation of minors to engage in prostitution, in violation of Fl. Stat. 796.03. The 

defendant must enter this guilty plea before he is sentenced on the federal offenses. 

12. The defendant agrees that he and the Palm Beach County State Attorney's 

Office will make a joint, binding recommendation that the Court impose a sentence of at least 

eighteen (18) months' imprisonment to be followed by at least twelve (12) months of 

community control/home confinement to be served upon the defendant's release from federal 

prison. Those sentences may run concurrently with the federal sentence imposed pursuant 

to this agreement. [NB: The other option is: The defendant and the Palm Beach County 

State Attorney's Office shall make a joint, binding recommendation that the Court 
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impose a sentence of at least sixty (60) months' probation, which will include at least 

twelve (12) months of community control/home confinement to be served upon the 

defendant's release from federal prison.' 

13. The defendant agrees to waive all challenges to the Information filed by the 

State Attorney's Office and to waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in the 

w'.k4s A epicecava
state court. 

14. The defendant agrees to provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all 

proposed agreements with the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office prior to entering 

into those agreements. 

15. The defendant agrees that the timely completion of these actions is material to 

this agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one 

of these conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to 

investigate and prosecute Epstein for any and all federal offenses. 

16. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and the probation 

office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant information 

concerning the offenses committed, whether charged or not, as well as concerning the 

defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court 

and the Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express 

terms of any agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this 

Office further reserves the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity 
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of punishment. 

17. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the 

Court. The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or 

sentence that the defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's 

attorney, the government, or the probation office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not 

binding on the government, the probation office or the Court. The defendant understands 

further that any recommendation that the government makes to the Court as to sentencing, 

whether pursuant to this agreement or otherwise, is not binding on the Court and the Court 

may disregard the recommendation in its entirety. The defendant understands and 

acknowledges, as previously acknowledged in paragraph 4 above, that the defendant may not 

withdraw his plea based upon the Court's decision not to accept a sentencing 

recommendation made by the defendant, the government, or a recommendation made jointly 

by both the defendant and the government. 

18. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL AND COLLATERALLY ATTACK 

THE SENTENCE. The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 

affords the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed in this case. Acknowledging 

this, in exchange for the undertakings made by the United States in this plea agreement, the 

defendant hereby waives all rights conferred by Section 3742 to appeal any sentence 

imposed, including any restitution order, or to appeal the manner in which the sentence was 

imposed, unless the sentence exceeds the maximum permitted by statute. The defendant 
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further voluntarily and expressly waives, to the maximum extent permitted by federal law, 

the right to collaterally attack his sentence in any post-conviction proceeding, including a 

motion on any ground brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2254, 28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 U.S.C. § 3572, 

or 18 U.S.C. § 3771. The defendant further understands that nothing in this agreement shall 

affect the government's right and/or duty to appeal as set forth in Title 18, United States 

Code, Section 3742(b). However, if the United States appeals the defendant's sentence 

pursuant to Section 3742(b), the defendant shall be released from the above waiver of 

appellate rights. By signing this agreement, the defendant acknowledges that he has 

discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this agreement with his attorney. 

19. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this 

Plea Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from 

its commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea 

Agreement because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the 

defendant's guilty plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant 

for any and all Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek any 

sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant 

expressly waives any statute of limitations defense and any constitutional or statutory speedy 

trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that such a defense exists as of the 

date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant understands that his violation of 

the terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to withdraw his guilty plea. 
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20. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and 

the defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date:   By:  
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By:  
JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

Date:   By:  
GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), 

and Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following 

agreement: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to the Information which charges the 

defendant with two counts of intentionally harassing another person, that is, Jane Does #1 and 2, 

in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade Jane Does #1 and 2 from reporting to a law enforcement 

officer of the United States the commission of a federal offense; in violation of Title 18, United 

States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) and 2. 

2. The defendant is aware that the sentence will be imposed by the Court after 

considering the Federal Sentencing Guidelines and Policy Statements (hereinafter 

"Sentencing Guidelines"). The defendant acknowledges and understands that the Court will 

compute an advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines and that the applicable 
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guidelines will be determined by the Court relying in part on the results of a Pre-Sentence 

Investigation by the Court's probation office, which investigation will commence after the 

guilty plea has been entered. The defendant is also aware that, under certain circumstances, 

the Court may depart from the advisory sentencing guideline range that it has computed, and 

may raise or lower that advisory sentence under the Sentencing Guidelines. The defendant 

is further aware and understands that the Court is required to consider the advisory guideline 

range determined under the Sentencing Guidelines, but is not bound to impose that sentence; 

the Court is permitted to tailor the ultimate sentence in light of other statutory concerns, and 

such sentence may be either more severe or less severe than the Sentencing Guidelines' 

advisory sentence. Knowing these facts, the defendant understands and acknowledges that 

the Court has the authority to impose any sentence within and up to the statutory maximum 

authorized by law for the offenses identified in paragraph 1 and that the defendant may not 

withdraw the plea solely as a result of the sentence imposed. 

3. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts 

1 and 2 of the Information, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment 

of up to one (1) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of 

one (1) year. In addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may 

impose a fine of up to $100,000 as to each count. 

4. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any 

sentence imposed under paragraph 3 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount 
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of $50 will be imposed on the defendant, which must be paid at or before the time of 

sentencing. 

5. The defendant understands that the Court will order that he must pay full 

restitution to all victims of the offense to which he is pleading guilty. The defendant 

understands that the amount of restitution owed to each victim will be determined at or 

before sentencing. 

6. The defendant agrees that, i f any of the victims identified in the federal investigation 

file suit pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255, the defendant will not contest the jurisdiction of the U.S. 

District Court for the Southern District of Florida over his person and/or the subject matter, and the 

defendant will not contest that the identified victims are persons who, while minors, were victims 

of violations of Title 18, United States Code, Sections(s) 2422 and/or 2423. The United States 

agrees to provide the defendant's attorneys with a list of the identified victims, which will not exceed 

forty, after the defendant has signed this agreement and has been sentenced. The United States 

further agrees to make a motion with the United States District Court for the Southern District of 

Florida for the appointment of a guardian ad litem for the identified victims and the defendant's 

counsel may contact the identified victims through that guardian. 

7. The defendant agrees to plead guilty (not nolo contendere) to an Information filed 

by the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office charging an offense for which the defendant must 

register as a sex offender, that is, solicitation of minors to engage in prostitution, in violation of Fl. 

Stat. 796.03. The defendant and the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office shall make a joint, 

binding recommendation that the Court impose a sentence of at least thirty (30) months, to be 
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divided as follows: 

(a) the defendant shall begin by serving at least twenty (20) months in prison, 

without any opportunity for withholding adjudication or sentencing, and 

without probation or community control in lieu of imprisonment; and 

(b) following the term of imprisonment, the defendant shall serve ten (10) 

months of community control/home confinement with electronic monitoring. 

8. The defendant shall waive all challenges to the Information filed by the State 

Attorney's Office and shall waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in the state court. 

9. The defendant shall provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all proposed 

agreements with the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office prior to entering into those 

agreements. 

10. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and the probation 

office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, including all relevant information 

concerning the offenses committed, whether charged or not, as well as concerning the 

defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court 

and the Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express 

terms of any agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this 

Office further reserves the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity 

of punishment. 

I I. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the 

Court. The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or 
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sentence that the defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's 

attorney, the government, or the probation office, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not 

binding on the government, the probation office or the Court. The defendant understands 

further that any recommendation that the government makes to the Court as to sentencing, 

whether pursuant to this agreement or otherwise, is not binding on the Court and the Court 

may disregard the recommendation in its entirety. The defendant understands and 

acknowledges, as previously acknowledged in paragraph 2 above, that the defendant may not 

withdraw his plea based upon the Court's decision not to accept a sentencing 

recommendation made by the defendant, the government, or a recommendation made jointly 

by both the defendant and the government. 

12. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO APPEAL AND COLLATERALLY ATTACK 

THE SENTENCE. The defendant is aware that Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742 

affords the defendant the right to appeal the sentence imposed in this case. Acknowledging 

this, in exchange for the undertakings made by the United States in this plea agreement, the 

defendant hereby waives all rights conferred by Section 3742 to appeal any sentence 

imposed, including any restitution order, or to appeal the manner in which the sentence was 

imposed, unless the sentence exceeds the maximum permitted by statute or is the result of 

an upward departure or upward variance from the guideline range that the Court establishes 

at sentencing. The defendant further voluntarily and expressly waives, to the maximum 

extent permitted by federal law, the right to collaterally attack his sentence in any post-
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conviction proceeding, including a motion on any ground brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2254, 

28 U.S.C. § 2255, 18 U.S.C. § 3572, or 18 U.S.C. § 3771. The defendant further understands 

that nothing in this agreement shall affect the government's right and/or duty to appeal as set 

forth in Title 18, United States Code, Section 3742(6). However, if the United States appeals 

the defendant's sentence pursuant to Section 3742(b), the defendant shall be released from 

the above waiver of appellate rights. By signing this agreement, the defendant acknowledges 

that he has discussed the appeal waiver set forth in this agreement with his attorney. 

13. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this 

Plea Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from 

its commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea 

Agreement because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the 

defendant's guilty plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant 

for any and all Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek any 

sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant 

expressly waives any statute of limitations defense and any constitutional or statutory speedy 

trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that such a defense exists as of the 

date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant understands that his violation of 

the terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to withdraw his guilty plea. 
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14. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and 

the defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date:   By:  
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By:  
JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

Date:   By:  
GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

CASE NO. 
18 U.S.C. § 1512(d)(2) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

INFORMATION 

The United States Attorney charges that: 

COUNT I 

In or around October 2005, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and 

elsewhere, the defendant, 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

did intentionally harass another person, that is, Jane Doe #1, in an attempt to delay, prevent, and 

dissuade Jane Doe #1 from reporting to a law enforcement officer of the United States the 

commission of a federal offense; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) 

and 2. 

COUNT 2 

In or around October 2005, in Palm Beach County, in the Southern District of Florida, and 

elsewhere, the defendant, 
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JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

did intentionally harass another person, that is, Jane Doe #2, in an attempt to delay, prevent, and 

dissuade Jane Doe #2 from reporting to a law enforcement officer of the United States the 

commission of a federal offense; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1512(d)(2) 

and 2. 

R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

A. MARIE VILLAPARA 

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 

Case No. 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

vs. 

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, 

Defendant. 

PLEA AGREEMENT 

The United States Attorney for the Southern District of Florida ("the United States"), and 

Jeffrey Epstein (hereinafter referred to as the "defendant") enter into the following agreement: 

1. The defendant agrees to plead guilty to a two-count Information which charges 

the defendant as follows. Count 1 charges that the defendant attempted to intentionally harass 

another person, that is, S.K., in an attempt to delay, prevent, and dissuade S.K. from attending or 

testifying in an official proceeding, that is a federal grand jury appearance in the Southern 

District of Florida, in violation of Title 18, U.S.C., § 1512(d)(1). Count 2 charges that the 

defendant attempted to intentionally harass another person, that is, N.M., in an attempt to delay, 

prevent, and dissuade N.M. from attending or testifying in an official proceeding, that is a federal 

grand jury appearance in the Southern District of Florida, in violation of Title 18, U.S.C. 

§ 1512(d)(1). 

2. The defendant agrees and understands that the above charges involve the United 

States Attorney's Office's and the Federal Bureau of Investigation's own investigation in his 

conduct, and the conduct of others, between in and around early 2001 through in and around 
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September 2007 involving conspiring with others known and unknown to commit an offense 

against the United States, in violation of Title 18, U.S.C., §§ 2422(b) and 2423(6); all in 

violation of Title 18, United States Code, §§ 371 and 18 U.S.C. 2423(e); and violating Title 18, 

U.S.C., §§ 2422(b); 2423(b) and (f); and Title 18, U.S.C., §§ 1591(a)(1) and (2). This agreement 

resolves the federal criminal liability of the defendant and any co-conspirators in the Southern 

District of Florida growing out of any criminal conduct by those persons known to the United 

States Attorney's Office for the Southern District of Florida as of the date of this plea agreement, 

including but not limited to the above-described scheme. 

3. The United States agrees that, upon entry of the defendant's guilty plea, its Grand 

Jury investigation will be suspended, and all pending Grand Jury subpoenas will be held in 

abeyance unless and until the defendant violates any term of this agreement, as explained in 

paragraph 20, infra. The defendant likewise agrees to withdraw his pending motion to intervene 

and to quash certain grand jury subpoenas. The defendant further agrees that the current 

custodian of certain computer equipment shall maintain that evidence inviolate until all of the 

terms of this agreement have been satisfied. Provided that the defendant does not breach this 

agreement, the Government agrees that it will not seek to initiate federal investigation or 

prosecution for conduct subject to this agreement. 

V‘In  
-Pla 

November 5, 2007. ")Epstein shall consent to the plea being entered and sentence imposed by a 

criUnited States magistrate judge pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3401(a). Pursuant—te 18 ALS.C. 

4. Epstein shall enter his guilty plea to the federal Information no later than 

§.3404(e)r apst 

iga ion 

ent a ree to recommend to t 
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outlined in this paragraph. 
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5. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, as to each of Counts 1 

and 2 of the Information, the Court may impose a statutory maximum term of imprisonment of 

up to one (1) year, to be followed by a term of supervised release of up to a maximum of one (1) 

year. In addition to terms of imprisonment and supervised release, the Court may impose a fine 

of up to $100,000 as to each count. 

6. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that, in addition to any 

sentence imposed under paragraph 3 of this Agreement, a special assessment in the amount of 

$50 will be imposed on the defendant, which must be paid efore the time of sentencing. 

7. The parties agree, that pursu. to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c)(1)(c), e defendant 

receive a sentence of eighteen (18) months' imprisonment, to be followed by one (1) year 

supervised release; and a fine of $200,000. The parties' further agree that the Court impose one 

year of home confinement as a special condition of supervised release. The ' further agree 

that there should is no restitution for the offenses charged. 

8. The parties agree that the United States Sentencing Guidelines as applied would 

N
result in a sentencing range of 10-16 months, a range resulting from the application of U.S.S.G. 

2J1.2 base offense level of 14, with no enhancement or cross-reference, reduced by two levels 

for acceptance of responsibility. The parties further agree to a 2-month upward departure from 

the guidelines. 
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9. The defendant agrees to fund a Trust set up in concert with the Government and 

under the supervision of the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County. The defendant 

agrees that a Trustee will be appointed by the Circuit Court and that funds from the Trust will be 

available to be disbursed at the Trustee's discretion to an agreed list of persons who seek 

reimbursement and make a good faith showing to the Trustee that they suffered injury as a result 

of the conduct of the defendant. The defendant waives his right to contest liability or damages 

up to an amount agreed to by the parties for any settlements entered into by the Trustee. The 

defendant's waiver is not to be construed as an admission of civil or criminal liability in regards 

to any of those who seek compensation from the Trust. The parties further agree that any person 

receiving funds from the Trust will be required to waive their right to separately pursue damages 

pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 2255. 

10. The defendant further understands and acknowledges that he must undertake 

certain actions with the State Attorney's Office for the 15th Judicial Circuit in and for Palm 

Beach County (hereinafter, "State Attorney's Office") in order to satisfy the United States' 

federal interest in the investigation and prosecution of his offenses, in accordance with the 

Justice Department's Petite Policy. The defendant understands and acknowledges that the 

United States Attorney has no authority to require the State Attorney's Office to abide by any 

terms of this Agreement. The defendant understands that it is his obligation to undertake 

discussion with the State Attorney's Office to ensure compliance with these procedures. 

11. In addition to entering a guilty plea in the instant case, the defendant and the Palm 

Beach County State Attorney's Office have agreed that the defendant will plead guilty to one (1) 

count of solicitation of prostitution, in violation of Fl. Stat. § 796.07 under the Indictment as 

currently pending against him (Case No. 2006-cf-009495AXXXMB). The defendant further 
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agrees to plead guilty to an Information filed by the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office 

charging one (1) count of a violation of the following Flivicla-Statu • Coe a erson to 

become a prostitute in violation of Fl. Stat. § 796.04. The terms of the plea are that the 

defendant will be adjudicated guilty and be P aced on sixty (60) months' probation to run 

concurrently with the federal sentence referenced above. The defendant will enter his plea to the 

indictment at least 7 days before he begins his federal sentence but not prior to the defendants 

sentencing before a federal judge. The defend • ter his successive plea to the 

hiformation after the conclusion of his federal sentence and supervised release. 

12. Theo de ant agrees f wvTal:/e all challenges to the Information  by the Slate 

Attorney's Office and to waive the right to appeal his conviction and sentence in the state court. 

13. The defendant agrees to provide to the U.S. Attorney's Office copies of all 

proposed agreements with the Palm Beach County State Attorney's Office prior to entering into 

those agreements. 

14. The defendant agrees that the timely completion of these actions is material to this 

agreement and is supported by independent consideration and that a breach of any one of these 

conditions allows the United States to elect to terminate the agreement and to investigate and 

prosecute the defendant for any and all federal offenses as defined on page 2, supra. 

15. The United States reserves the right to inform the Court and, if a Presentence 

Report is ordered by the Magistrate-Judge despite the joint agreement of the parties that no such 

report shall be requested, the probation office of all facts pertinent to the sentencing process, 

including all relevant information concerning the offenses committed as well as concerning the 

defendant and the defendant's background, and to respond to any questions from the Court and 

the Probation Office and to any misstatements of fact or law. Subject only to the express terms 
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of any agreed-upon sentencing recommendations contained in this Agreement, this Office further 

reserves the right to make any recommendation as to the quality and quantity of punishment. 

The Government will not oppose the defendant's request that the Magistrate-Judge recommend 

to the Bureau of Prisons that the sentence be served at a federal prison camp. 

16. The defendant is aware that the sentence has not yet been determined by the 

Court. The defendant also is aware that any estimate of the probable sentencing range or 

sentence that the defendant may receive, whether that estimate comes from the defendant's 

attorney or the government, is a prediction, not a promise, and is not binding on the government 

or the Court. The defendant understands further that any recommendation that the government 

makes to the Court as to sentencing, whether pursuant to this agreement or otherwise, is not 

binding on the Court and the Court may disregard the recommendation in its entirety. 

17. After timely ulfilling 11 the terms and conditions of the Agreement, no 

prosecution for the offenses set o on pages 1 and 2 of this Agreement will be instituted in this 

District, and the charges ag i the de ndant if any, will be dismissed. 

18. After timely f filling th s and conditions of this Agreement, the United 

States agrees that no prosecution ill be instituted or initiated against the defendant for any and 

all criminal charges which might of erwise in the future be brought against the defendant that 

arise out of the ongoing RBI federal in estigation for offenses that include but are not limited to 

those listed above. 

19. The defendant's fulfill ing the terms and conditions of the Agreement also 

precludes the initiation of any an all criminal charges which might otherwise in the future be 

brought against Sarah Kelle /Adriana Ross, Lesley Groff, and Nadia Marcinkova or any 

employee of N.E.S. for any/criminal ch ge that arises out of the ongoing federal investigation as 
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described above; Further, the United States Attorney's Office will not request, initiate, or in any 

way encourage immigration authorities to institute immigration proceedings against Ross or 

Marcinkova as a result of the ongoing investigation. 

20. If the defendant fails in any way to fulfill each one of his obligations under this 

Plea Agreement, the United States, and only the United States, may elect to be released from its 

commitments under this Plea Agreement. If the United States elects to void the Plea Agreement 

because of a breach by the defendant, then the United States agrees not to use the defendant's 

guilty plea against him. However, the United States may prosecute the defendant for any and all 

Federal crimes that he has committed related to this case and may seek if there is a conviction 

any sentence for such crimes up to and including the statutory maximums. The defendant 

expressly waives any statute of limitations defense as to the offenses listed on page 2, supra and 

any constitutional or statutory speedy trial defense to such a prosecution, except to the extent that 

such a defense exists as of the date he signs this Plea Agreement. Finally, the defendant 

understands that his violation of the terms of this Plea Agreement would not entitle him to 

withdraw his guilty plea. 

21. By signing this agreement, the defendant asserts and certifies that he is aware of 

the fact that the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States provides that in all 

criminal prosecutions the accused shall enjoy the right to a speedy and public trial. The 

defendant further is aware that Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provides 

that the Court may dismiss an indictment, information, or complaint for unnecessary delay in 

presenting a charge to the Grand Jury, filing an information, or in bringing a defendant to trial. 

The defendant hereby requests that the United States Attorney for the Southern District of 

Florida defer such prosecution. The defendant agrees and consents that any delay from the date 
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of this Agreement to the date of initiation of prosecution, as provided for in the terms expressed 

herein, shall be deemed to be a necessary delay at his own request, and he hereby waives any 

defense to such prosecution on the ground that such delay operated to deny him rights under 

Rule 48(b) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and the Sixth Amendment to the 

Constitution of the United States to a speedy trial or to bar the prosecution by reason of the 

running of the statute of limitations for a period of months equal to the period between the 

signing of this agreement and the breach of this agreement, for the offenses listed on pages 1 and 

2 infra. The defendant further asserts and certifies that he understands that the Fifth Amendment 

and Rule 7(a) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure provide that all felonies must be 

charged in an indictment presented to a grand jury. The defendant hereby agrees and consents 

that, if a prosecution against him is instituted for the offenses listed on pages 1 and 2, infra, it 

may be by way of an Information signed and filed by the United States Attorney, and hereby 

waives his right to be indicted by a grand jury. 

22. This is the entire agreement and understanding between the United States and the 

defendant. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or understandings. 

Date:  By: 
R. ALEXANDER ACOSTA 

UNITED STATES ATTORNEY 

Date:   By: 

Date:  

JEFFREY EPSTEIN, DEFENDANT 

By: 
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GERALD LEFCOURT, ESQ. 

ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT 
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